

NEW ITEMS AGENDA

**Meeting of the Cook County Board of Commissioners
County Board Room, County Building
Wednesday, July 17, 2013 10:45 A.M.**

PRESIDENT

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

ITEM #1

**13-O-
ORDINANCE**

Sponsored by

**THE HONORABLE TONI PRECKWINKLE, PRESIDENT
AND JESUS G. GARCIA, JOAN PATRICIA MURPHY, DEBORAH SIMS
AND LARRY SUFFREDIN, COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**

Co-Sponsored by

THE HONORABLE BRIDGET GAINER, COUNTY COMMISSIONER

BLAIR HOLT ASSAULT WEAPONS BAN

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Cook County Board of Commissioners, that Chapter 54 Licenses, Permits and Miscellaneous Business Regulations, Article III Deadly Weapons Dealers, Division 4 Blair Holt Assault Weapons Ban, Section 54-210 through 54-215 is hereby amended as follows:

DIVISION 4. BLAIR HOLT ASSAULT WEAPONS BAN

Sec. 54-210. Applicability.

(a) The provisions included in this division apply to all persons in Cook County including but not limited to persons licensed under this article.

(b) As provided in Article VII, Section 6(c), of the State of Illinois Constitution of 1970, if this article conflicts with an Ordinance of a municipality, the municipal Ordinance shall prevail within its jurisdiction.

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

Sec. 54-211. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Assault weapon means:

- (1) A semiautomatic rifle that has the capacity to accept a large capacity magazine detachable or otherwise and one or more of the following:
 - (A) Only a pistol grip without a stock attached;
 - (B) Any feature capable of functioning as a protruding grip that can be held by the non-trigger hand;
 - (C) A folding, telescoping or thumbhole stock;
 - (D) A shroud attached to the barrel, or that partially or completely encircles the barrel, allowing the bearer to hold the firearm with the non-trigger hand without being burned, but excluding a slide that encloses the barrel; or
 - (E) A muzzle brake or muzzle compensator;
- (2) A semiautomatic pistol or any semi-automatic rifle that has a fixed magazine, that has the capacity to accept more than ten rounds of ammunition;
- (3) A semiautomatic pistol that has the capacity to accept a detachable magazine and has one or more of the following:
 - (A) Any feature capable of functioning as a protruding grip that can be held by the non-trigger hand;
 - (B) A folding, telescoping or thumbhole stock;
 - (C) A shroud attached to the barrel, or that partially or completely encircles the barrel, allowing the bearer to hold the firearm with the non-trigger hand without being burned, but excluding a slide that encloses the barrel;
 - (D) A muzzle brake or muzzle compensator; or
 - (E) The capacity to accept a detachable magazine at some location outside of the pistol grip.

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

- (4) A semiautomatic shotgun that has one or more of the following:
 - (A) Only a pistol grip without a stock attached;
 - (B) Any feature capable of functioning as a protruding grip that can be held by the non-trigger hand;
 - (C) A folding, telescoping or thumbhole stock;
 - (D) A fixed magazine capacity in excess of five rounds; ~~or~~
 - (E) An ability to accept a detachable magazine; or
 - (F) A grenade, flare or rocket launcher.
- (5) Any shotgun with a revolving cylinder.
- (6) Conversion kit, part or combination of parts, from which an assault weapon can be assembled if those parts are in the possession or under the control of the same person;
- (7) Shall include, but not be limited to, the assault weapons models identified as follows:
 - (A) The following rifles or copies or duplicates thereof:
 - ~~(i)~~(1) AK, AKM, AKS, AK-47, AK-74, ARM, MAK90, Misr, NHM 90, NHM 91, SA 85, SA 93, VEPR, Rock River Arms LAR-47, Vector Arms AK-47, VEPR, WASR-10, WUM, MAADI, Norinco 56S, 56S2, 84S, and 86S;
 - ~~(ii)~~(2) AR-10;
 - ~~(iii)~~(3) AR-15, Bushmaster XM15, Bushmaster Carbon 15, Bushmaster ACR, Bushmaster MOE series, Armalite M15, Armalite M15-T and Olympic Arms PCR;
 - ~~(iv)~~(4) AR70;
 - ~~(v)~~(5) Calico Liberty;
 - ~~(vi)~~(6) Dragunov SVD Sniper Rifle or Dragunov SVU;
 - ~~(vii)~~(7) Fabrique National FN/FAL, FN/LAR, or FNC;

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

- ~~(viii)~~(8) Hi-Point Carbine;
- ~~(ix)~~(9) HK-91, HK-93, HK-94, HK-USC and HK-PSG-1;
- ~~(x)~~(10) Kel-Tec Sub Rifle, Kel-Tec Sub-2000, SU-16, and RFB;
- ~~(xi)~~(11) Saiga;
- ~~(xii)~~(12) SAR-8, SAR-4800;
- ~~(xiii)~~(13) KS with detachable magazine;
- ~~(xiv)~~(14) SLG 95;
- ~~(xv)~~(15) SLR 95 or 96;
- ~~(xvi)~~(16) Steyr AUG;
- ~~(xvii)~~(17) Sturm, Ruger Mini-14, and Sturm, Ruger & Co. SR556;
- ~~(xviii)~~(18) Tavor;
- ~~(xix)~~(19) All Thompson rifles, including Thompson 1927, Thompson M1, Thompson M1SB, Thompson T1100D, Thompson T150D, Thompson T1B, Thompson T1B100D, Thompson T1B50D, Thompson T1BSB, Thompson T1-C, Thompson T1D, Thompson T1SB, Thompson T5, Thompson T5100D, Thompson TM1, Thompson TM1C and Thompson 1927 Commando; or
- ~~(xx)~~(20) Uzi, Galil and Uzi Sporter, Galil Sporter, or Galil Sniper Rifle (Galatz);
- ~~(xxi)~~(21) Barret REC7, Barrett M82A1, Barrett M107A1;
- (22) Colt Match Target Rifles;
- (23) Double Star AR Rifles;
- (24) DPMS Tactical Rifles;
- (25) Heckler & Koch MR556;
- (26) Remington R-15 Rifles;

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

- (27) Rock River Arms LAR-15;
 - (28) Sig Sauer SIG516 Rifles, SIG AMT, SIG PE 57, Sig Saucer SG 550, and Sig Saucer SG 551;
 - (29) Smith & Wesson M&P15;
 - (30) Stag Arms AR;
 - (31) Baretta CX4 Storm;
 - (32) CETME Sporter;
 - (33) Daewoo K-1, K-2, Max 1, Max 2, AR 100, and AR 110C;
 - (34) Fabrique Nationale/FN Herstal FAL, LAR, 22 FNC, 308 Match, L1A1 Sporter, PS90, SCAR, and FS2000;
 - (35) Feather Industries AT-9;
 - (36) Galil Model AR and Model ARM;
 - (37) Springfield Armory SAR-48;
 - (38) Steyr AUG;
 - (39) UMAREX UZI Rifle;
 - (40) UZI Mini Carbine, UZI Model A Carbine, and UZI Model B Carbine;
 - (41) Valmet M62S, M71S, and M78;
 - (42) Vector Arms UZI Type;
 - (43) Weaver Arms Nighthawk; and
 - (44) Wilkinson Arms Linda Carbine
- (B) The following handguns, pistols or copies or duplicates thereof:
- (i) Calico M-110;
 - (ii) MAC 10, MAC 11, or MPA3;

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

- ~~(iii) Olympic Arms OA;~~
- ~~(iv) TEC 9, TEC DC9, TEC 22 Scorpion, or AB-10; or~~
- ~~(v) Uzi;~~
- (1) All AK-47 types, including Centurion 39 AK handgun, Draco AK-47 handgun, HCR AK-47 handgun, 10 Inc. Hellpup, AK-47 handgun, Krinkov handgun, Mini Draco AK-47 handgun, and Yugo Krebs Krink handgun.
- (2) All AR-15 types, including American Spirit AR-15 handgun, Bushmaster Carbon 15 handgun, DoubleStar Corporation AR handgun, DPMS AR-15 handgun, Olympic Arms AR-15 handgun and Rock River Arms LAR 15 handgun;
- (3) Calico Liberty handguns;
- (4) DSA SA58 PKP FAL handgun;
- (5) Encom MP-9 and MP-45;
- (6) Heckler & Koch model SP-89 handgun;
- (7) Intratec AB-10, TEC-22 Scorpion, TEC-9. and TEC-DC9;
- (8) Kel-Tec PLR 16 handgun;
- (9) MAC-IO, MAC-11, Masterpiece Arms MPA A930 Mini Pistol, MPA460 Pistol, MPA Tactical Pistol, MPA 3and MPA Mini Tactical Pistol;
- (10) Military Armament Corp. Ingram M-11 and Velocity Arms VMAC;
- (11) Sig Sauer P556 handgun;
- (12) Sites Spectre;
- (13) All Thompson types, including the Thompson TA510D and Thompson TA5;
- (14) Olympic Arms OA;
- (15) TEC-9, TEC-DC9, TEC-22 Scorpion, or AB-10; and

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

(16) All UZI types, including Micro-UZI.

(C) The following shotguns or copies or duplicates thereof:

~~(i)(1)~~ Armscor 30 BG;

~~(ii)(2)~~ SPAS 12 or LAW 12;

~~(iii)(3)~~ Striker 12; ~~or~~

~~(iv)(4)~~ Streetsweeper;

(5) All IZHMAISH Saiga 12 types, including the IZHMAISH Saiga 12, IZHMAISH Saiga 12S, IZHMAISH Saiga 12S EXP-01, IZHMAISH Saiga 12K, IZHMAISH Saiga 12K-030, and IZHMAISH Saiga 12K-040 Taktika.

(D) All belt-fed semiautomatic firearms, including TNWM2HB.

"Assault weapon" does not include any firearm that has been made permanently inoperable, or satisfies the definition of "antique firearm," stated in this section, or weapons designed for Olympic target shooting events.

Barrel Shroud means a shroud that is attached to, or partially or completely encircles, the barrel of a firearm so that the shroud protects the user of the firearm from heat generated by the barrel. The term does not include (i) a slide that partially or completely encloses the barrel; or (ii) an extension of the stock along the bottom of the barrel which does not completely or substantially encircle the barrel.

Detachable magazine means any ammunition feeding device, the function of which is to deliver one or more ammunition cartridges into the firing chamber, which can be removed from the firearm without the use of any tool, including a bullet or ammunition cartridge.

Large capacity magazine means any ammunition feeding device with the capacity to accept more than ten rounds, but shall not be construed to include the following:

- (1) A feeding device that has been permanently altered so that it cannot accommodate more than ten rounds.
- (2) A 22 caliber tube ammunition feeding device.
- (3) A tubular magazine that is contained in a lever-action firearm.

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

Muzzle brake means a device attached to the muzzle of a weapon that utilizes escaping gas to reduce recoil.

Muzzle compensator means a device attached to the muzzle of a weapon that utilizes escaping gas to control muzzle movement.

Rocket means any simple or complex tubelike device containing combustibles that on being ignited liberate gases whose action propels the device through the air and has a propellant charge of not more than 4 ounces.

Grenade, flare or rocket launcher means an attachment for use on a firearm that is designed to propel a grenade, flare, rocket, or other similar destructive device.

Belt-fed semiautomatic firearm means any repeating firearm that: (i) utilizes a portion of the energy of a firing cartridge to extract the fired cartridge case and chamber the next round: (ii) requires a separate pull of the trigger to fire each cartridge: and (iii) has the capacity to accept a belt ammunition feeding device.

Sec. 54-212. Assault weapons, and large capacity magazines; sale prohibited; exceptions.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any ~~No~~ person ~~shall to~~ manufacture, sell, offer or display for sale, give, lend, transfer ownership of, acquire, carry or possess any assault weapon or large capacity magazine in Cook County. This subsection shall not apply to:

- (1) The sale or transfer to, or possession by any officer, agent, or employee of Cook County or any other municipality or state or of the United States, members of the armed forces of the United States; or the organized militia of this or any other state; or peace officers to the extent that any such person named in this subsection is otherwise authorized to acquire or possess an assault weapon and/or large capacity magazine and does so while acting within the scope of his or her duties;
- (2) Transportation of assault weapons or large capacity magazine if such weapons are broken down and in a nonfunctioning state and are not immediately accessible to any person.

(b) Any assault weapon or large capacity magazine possessed, carried, sold or transferred in violation of Subsection (a) of this section is hereby declared to be contraband and shall be seized and disposed of in accordance with the provisions of Section 54-213.

(c) ~~Any person found in violation of this section shall be sentenced to not more than six months imprisonment or fined not less than \$500.00 and not more than \$1,000.00, or both.~~

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

~~(d)~~ Any person including persons who are a qualified retired law enforcement officer as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 926C who, prior to the effective date of the Ordinance codified in this section, was legally in possession of an assault weapon or large capacity magazine prohibited by this division shall have ~~90~~ (60) days from the effective date of the Ordinance to do any of the following without being subject to prosecution hereunder:

- (1) To legally remove the assault weapon or large capacity magazine from within the limits of the County of Cook; or
- (2) To modify the assault weapon or large capacity magazine either to render it permanently inoperable ~~or to permanently make it a device no longer defined as an assault weapon or large capacity magazine~~; or
- (3) To surrender the assault weapon or large capacity magazine to the Sheriff or his designee for disposal as provided below.

Sec. 54-213. Destruction of weapons confiscated.

(a) Whenever any firearm, assault weapon, or large capacity magazine is surrendered or confiscated pursuant to the terms of this article, the Sheriff shall ascertain whether such firearm is needed as evidence in any matter.

(b) If such firearm, assault weapon, or large capacity magazine is not required for evidence it shall be destroyed at the direction of the Sheriff. A record of the date and method of destruction and inventory ~~of~~ of the firearm, assault weapon, or large capacity magazine so destroyed shall be maintained.

Sec. 54-214. Violation – Penalty.

(a) Any person found in violation of this division shall be fined not less than \$1000.00 and not more than \$5,000.00 and may be sentenced for a term not to exceed more than six months imprisonment. Any subsequent violation of this division shall be punishable by a fine of not less than \$5,000.00 and not more than \$10,000.00 and may be sentenced for a term not to exceed more than six months imprisonment.

(b) It shall not be a violation of this division if a person transporting an assault weapon firearm or ammunition while engaged in interstate travel is in compliance with 18 U.S.C.A. § 926A. There shall be a rebuttable presumption that any person within the county for more than 24 hours is not engaged in interstate travel, and is subject to the provisions of this chapter.

PRESIDENT continued

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #1 cont'd

Sec. 54-215. Severability.

If any subsection, paragraph, sentence or clause of this division or the application thereof to any person is for any reason deemed to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect, impair or invalidate any remaining subsection, paragraph, sentence or clause hereof or the application of this Section to any other person.

Effective Date. These Ordinance Amendments are effective upon passage.

In accordance with Cook County Code Section 2-107(z)(1) Amendment or suspension of rules, Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved to suspend Section 2-107(h)(1) Prior notice to public; agendas. **The motion carried unanimously.**

Commissioner Garcia, seconded by Commissioner Steele, moved that the Ordinance Amendment be approved and adopted. Commissioner Schneider called for a Roll Call, the vote of yeas and nays being as follows:

**ROLL CALL ON MOTION TO APPROVE
THE BLAIR HOLT ASSAULT WEAPONS BAN ORDINANCE AMENDMENT**

Yeas: Commissioners Butler, Daley, Fritchey, Garcia, Moore, Murphy, Reyes, Sims and Steele - 9.

Nays: Commissioners Gorman, Goslin, Schneider and Silvestri - 4.

Absent: Commissioners Collins, Gainer, Suffredin and Tobolski - 4.

The motion carried and the Ordinance Amendment was APPROVED and ADOPTED.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

ITEM #2

Submitting a Proposed Ordinance Amendment sponsored by

TONI PRECKWINKLE, President, Cook County Board of Commissioners

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Commissioners of Cook County that Appendix A Zoning, Article 8 General Provisions, Section 8.6, Article 9 Planned Unit Development, Section 9.5 through 9.8, Article 13 Administration and Enforcement, Section 13.3, 13.4, 13.6, 13.7 and 13.8, and Article 14 Rules and Definitions of the Cook County Code shall be amended as follows:

ARTICLE 8. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

8.6. Structure height.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

The following requirements qualify or supplement district regulations in this Ordinance:

8.6.1. District regulations. The height of any structure shall not exceed 125 percent of the height of the tallest existing structure located within a one-quarter mile radius of the property lines of the subject site. Structures located in R-7, R-8, C-2, C-4, C-7 or C-8 zoning districts shall not be used in the calculation of tallest existing structure. Property zoned R-7, R-8, C-2, C-4, C-7 or C-8 is exempted from this provision. This provision shall not apply if no structure exists within a one-quarter mile radius.

8.6.2. Public buildings. A public hospital or institution, a public or parochial school and a public utility or public service building shall not exceed a height of 60 feet, provided the building is set back from the front, rear and side lot lines a ratio of two feet for every ten feet of building height greater than 40 feet. This height requirement shall apply in addition to rear and side yard requirements set forth in this ordinance.

8.6.3. Building appurtenances. A chimney, parapet wall, skylight, steeple, flag pole, smokestack, cooling tower, elevator bulkhead, fire tower, monument, water tower, stack, stage tower or scenery loft, tank, ornamental tower or spire, roof garden, recreational facility, mechanical appurtenance or penthouse containing a mechanical appurtenance may exceed the height limits in this Ordinance and shall not be included in building height.

8.6.4. Planned unit developments. The structures in a planned unit development may exceed the height limits established for the district in which the structures are located in accordance with an approved planned unit development.

8.6.5. Airports.

A. Structures subject to notice under Federal Aviation Regulations shall not be constructed until it is determined by the Federal Aviation Administration that a structure will not be a hazard to aerial navigation. Applications for zoning amendments, special uses, unique uses, ~~variations~~ ^{variances} or planned unit developments which involve property located within two miles of an airport shall be forwarded by the ~~Zoning Administrator or Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning to the Federal Aviation Administration for review and comment. In addition, plans to construct a structure exceeding 160 feet in height, regardless of location, shall be forwarded to the Federal Aviation Administration for review and comment.

B. Data relating to an applicant's request to construct a structure within two miles of an airport shall be made available to the Federal Aviation Administration by the Department of Building and Zoning or Bureau of ~~Administration~~ Economic Development.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

ARTICLE 9. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT.

9.5. Application for preliminary plan approval.

9.5.1. Notice of application. An applicant shall, not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days before filing an application, serve written notice, of intent to apply for a PUD by certified mail with return receipt requested, to property owners within 250 feet of the lot lines of the proposed PUD. The property owners receiving notice shall be those persons or entities whose names appear on the Cook County tax records. For condominium developments that are located within 250 feet of the lot lines of the proposed PUD, only the condominium association shall be served with notice. The number of feet occupied by public roads, streets, alleys and other public ways shall be excluded in computing the 250 feet requirement. Notice need not be sent to owners more than 400 feet from the subject property when public streets, alleys and other public ways are included in the computation. In addition, the applicant shall serve notice to the clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the subject property, the superintendent of each local school district serving the PUD, the fire chief of each local fire protection district serving the PUD, the township clerk and the township highway commissioner for the district serving the PUD. Notice shall contain the address of the subject property, a brief statement of the nature of the application, the name and address of the applicant and a statement of the approximate date when the applicant intends to apply. If the property owner on which notice is served cannot be found or the mailed notice is returned, the notice requirements of this provision shall be deemed satisfied provided the applicant made a bonafide effort to determine the owner's address.

9.5.2. Application and supporting documents.

A. ~~An applications for a PUD shall be submitted to the Department of Building and ZoningBureau of Administration in such form and accompanied by such information as required by the Department of Building and Zoning.~~ The applicant shall file one original ~~and 15 copies of the application and all supporting documents. The applicant shall attestdisclose, and the Bureau of AdministrationDepartment of Building and Zoning shall independently verify, that no~~ whether a judicial proceeding for a violation of any Cook County Ordinance is pending pertaining to the subject property.

B. Applicants shall ~~furnish~~ file with to the Bureau of AdministrationDepartment of Building and Zoning a sworn affidavit containing a complete list of the names and last known addresses of the persons served with notices pursuant to Section 9.5.1.. Applicants shall also furnish a written statement to the Bureau of Administration certifying compliance with the notice requirements of this ordinance.

C. ~~Applications which fail to comply with this section shall be returned by the Bureau of Administration to applicant. The Bureau of Administration shall retain one copy of the application and supporting documents.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- ~~D.~~ Applications shall be accompanied by the following documentation:
1. Statement describing the character of the PUD and the manner in which it has been designed to take advantage of the flexibility of PUD regulations and the benefits that will accrue to the public as a result of the PUD.
 2. Statement of planning objectives to be achieved by the PUD.
 3. Statement of present and proposed ownership of all land within the proposed PUD, with supporting documentation, and an affidavit certifying that there are no delinquent taxes on the whole or any part of the property.
 4. Development schedule indicating stages in which the proposed PUD will be built and approximate dates for beginning and completion of each construction stage.
 5. Proposed agreements, provisions or covenants which will govern the use, maintenance, operation and improvement of the proposed PUD and any of its common open space.
 6. Statement indicating the density of uses including total number of dwelling units per acre, number of units by type, number of buildings by type and number of bedrooms in each building and dwelling unit type.
 7. Statement detailing the type and amount of nonresidential uses including the total amount of common open space and net amount (open space which is not located in required yards or storm water management areas) of open space.
 8. Statement identifying the type and location of service facilities and off-street parking facilities, including total number of parking spaces and parking spaces per sub-area.
 9. Architectural plans for all primary buildings which reveal the style of the development and the building design, floor area of building types and total ground coverage of buildings.
 10. Landscape plan prepared by a registered landscape architect depicting trees, plant materials, grading, excavating, berming and aesthetic features.
 11. School impact study estimating the number of additional students and the financial burden the proposed PUD will have on local school districts.
 12. Appraisal report prepared by an MAI appraiser demonstrating the value of the property as zoned and the value as zoned with the proposed PUD.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13. Tax impact study estimating the tax revenue to be generated by the proposed PUD and the estimated cost to various taxing bodies of providing necessary services to the PUD.
14. Traffic analysis demonstrating the adequacy of the local transportation system to handle anticipated traffic volumes generated by the proposed PUD and an analysis of the adequacy of the PUD's internal vehicular circulation system.
15. Economic feasibility study of the proposed PUD showing the need and feasibility of the proposed development.
16. Sediment and erosion control plan.
17. Report indicating the subsurface conditions on the proposed PUD land, including location and result of tests made to ascertain subsurface soil, rock and ground water conditions, depth to ground water and location and results of soil percolation tests if individual sewage disposal systems are proposed.
18. Schedule for phased development of the proposed PUD if the PUD is not intended to be established within one year. Upon approval, the development plan or schedule shall be considered as a limitation and condition on the PUD.
19. Preliminary lighting plan.
20. Survey prepared by a registered landscape architect or arborist of all trees over six inches in diameter, as measured six inches above the established grade, indicating location, species and quality.
21. Report indicating the existing and proposed pedestrian circulation system, including bicycle paths.
22. Site plan to scale depicting the following information:
 - a. Boundary lines of adjoining property within 1,000 feet of the subject property identifying parcels by PIN number, existing land use, existing zoning classification and comprehensive plan recommendation.
 - b. Location, width and purpose of easements.
 - c. Streets on and adjacent to the proposed PUD including street names, right-of-way widths, parking areas, existing or proposed centerline elevations, pavement types, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, culverts, paths and bike trails.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- d. Utilities on and adjacent to the proposed PUD including location, size and invert elevation of sanitary, storm and combined sewers, location and size of water mains and location of gas lines, fire hydrants, electric and telephone lines and street lights.
- e. Ground elevations on the proposed PUD at one-foot contours with spot elevations at all breaks in grades, along all drainage channels or swales and at points of special significance.
- f. Water courses, floodplains, floodways, wetlands, marshes, rock outcrops, wooded areas, trees six inches or more in diameter, houses, accessory buildings and other significant features.
- g. Direction and gradient of ground slope of land within 1,000 feet of the proposed PUD including embankments or retaining walls, character and location of major buildings, railroads, power lines, towers, and other nonresidential land uses or adverse influences, platted lands with percentage of buildup, lot sizes and dwelling types.
- h. Proposed public improvements within 1,000 feet of the proposed PUD including highways and other major improvements planned by public authorities for future construction on or near the tract.
- i. Open space and recreational areas and facilities for public use or reserved for the use of all property owners.
- j. Location, purpose and height of all buildings and structures.
- k. Name of development, site planner, north point, scale, acreage of site and date of preparation.
- l. Additional information as may be required by Cook County.

D. Applications shall be accompanied by proposed findings of fact addressing each of the standards in Section 9.5.10. (A).

E. Applications which fail to comply with this section shall be returned by the Zoning Administrator to applicant, and the accompanying application fee will be reimbursed. The Zoning Administrator may retain one copy of the application and supporting documents.

~~9.5.3. Certification. The Bureau of Administration shall certify that the application for preliminary plan approval is complete and that all required documentation has been submitted in full prior to scheduling a public hearing on the application.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

~~9.5.4. Fee.~~ The application shall be accompanied by a fee as established by the Cook County Board of Commissioners in order to be deemed complete.

9.5.4. Verification. The Department of Building and Zoning shall verify that the application for preliminary plan approval is complete and that all required documentation has been submitted prior to forwarding the application.

9.5.5. Disclosure. Applicants shall make the following disclosures by sworn affidavit, filed at the time of the application.

A. *Property.*

1. Applicants of property held in a land trust shall disclose the identity of each beneficiary of the trust including the name, address and percentage of interest of each beneficiary. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
2. Applicants of property owned by a partnership or association of two or more persons holding a common interest, shall disclose the name and address of each partner or associate. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
3. Applicants property owned by a corporation, shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of shareholders owing five percent or more of the corporation. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~

B. *Applicant.*

1. Applicants acting as agents or nominees shall disclose their agency relationship and the name and address of the principals, and their interest in the subject property. If the principals are not individuals, the identity of the principals shall be disclosed in accordance with paragraph 2 below. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
2. Applicants who are a partnership or association of two or more persons holding a common interest shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of each partner or associate having more than a five-percent interest shall be disclosed. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
3. Applicants who are corporations shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of shareholders owning five percent or more of the corporation. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

~~9.5.6. *Setting hearing date.* Zoning Committee of Cook County Board of Commissioners. An application for a PUD shall be transmitted by the Bureau of Administration to the Zoning Committee of the Cook County Board of Commissioners for its referral back to the Bureau of Administration for processing. The Bureau of Administration Department of Building and Zoning shall forward a copy of the complete application and supporting documentation to the Zoning Board of Appeals which shall thereafter set a date for public hearing. The date for public hearing shall be set to permit sufficient time for review required in Section 9.5.7.~~

~~9.5.7. *Processing applications.* Upon receipt of a complete application for preliminary plan approval, and at least 15 days before a scheduled hearing date, tThe Bureau of Administration Department of Building and Zoning, upon receipt of an application for preliminary plan approval from the Zoning Committee of the Cook County Board of Commissioners, shall forward a copy of the application, including the applicant's proposed findings of fact and all supporting documentation, to the Cook County Commissioner in whose district the property is located, and shall notify the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve, the Cook County Department of Public Health and the Cook County Department of Environmental Control that a complete application, including the applicant's proposed findings of fact and all supporting documentation has been submitted and is ready for review. In addition, the Bureau of Administration shall provide notice of the availability of the application and supporting documents, for inspection and copying to the superintendents of local school districts, the fire chiefs of local fire protection districts, township highway commissioners, township clerks and municipalities within 1½ miles of the proposed PUD. The application and supporting documentation shall be forwarded to Cook County departments at least 60 days before a scheduled hearing date. Each reviewing department shall submit recommendations and comments to the Bureau of Administration at least 307 days before the scheduled hearing date.~~

~~Cook County~~ Each reviewing departments shall examine the application and supporting documentation based upon the following, as well as similar criteria:

- A. Department of Planning and Development.
 - 1. Economic impact.
 - 2. Community need.
 - 3. Trend of development.
 - 4. Demographics.
 - 5. Property values.
 - 6. Landscape plan.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- B. Department of Building and Zoning.
 - 1. Site plan review.
 - 2. Land use and permit review of properties in the vicinity of the proposed use.
 - 3. Lot size.
 - 4. Subdivision regulations.
- C. Department of Highways.
 - 1. Wetland mitigation and compensation.
 - 2. Floodway and floodplain capacity and storage.
 - 3. Drainage and detention requirements.
 - 4. Roads, bridges, culverts, driveways, sidewalks, ingress, egress and access control.
 - 5. Subdivision regulations.
 - 6. Drainage, utilities, road easements and dedications.
 - 7. Criteria from other regulatory agencies such as the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District, Illinois Department of Transportation, Illinois Department of Natural Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers, local fire protection agencies, and townships.
 - 8. Erosion and sediment control requirements.
- D. Forest Preserve District.
 - 1. Compatibility of the proposed use with Forest Preserve holdings.
 - 2. Impact on value of Forest Preserve holdings.
 - 3. Future Forest Preserve acquisitions.
- E. Department of Public Health.
 - 1. Lot sizes for private septic systems and wells.
 - 2. Subdivision regulations.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

3. Swimming pools.
4. Public or community well and septic or sewage systems.
5. Health and safety concerns.
- F. Department of Environmental Control.
 1. Noise and odor regulations.
 2. Soil geology and composition.
 3. Wetland mitigation and compensation.
 4. Discharges of effluent and particulate into the air, land and water.
 5. Criteria from other regulatory agencies such as the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, Illinois Department of Natural Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers and United States Environmental Protection Agency.

~~At least ten days prior to the scheduled hearing on the application, the Bureau of Administration shall prepare a report for the Cook County Board of Commissioners and the Cook County Zoning Board of Appeals detailing its findings and recommendations. The report shall address all technical aspects of the data and plans submitted and indicate whether the plan satisfies each of the PUD standards enumerated in this ordinance. The Cook County Department's' recommendations and comments, as well as the Bureau of Administration's report, shall be available to the applicant or its representative, upon request, for review and/or reproduction prior to the hearing date. The Bureau of Administration may, in its discretion, retain expert consultants as it deems necessary. The applicant shall reimburse Cook County for all fees and costs associated with expert consultants prior to consideration of the application by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.~~

9.5.8. Notice of public hearing.

A. Time and place of a public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in Cook County not less than 15 days before the hearing. In addition, at least 15 days before the hearing, notice of the hearing shall be posted on the property for which an application for preliminary plan approval has been filed in such a way as to be plainly visible from the street or right-of-way passing the frontage of the property. Notice posted on the property shall be maintained until the date of hearing on a weatherproof sign that is at least three feet by four feet in size. The sign shall have a white background and contain the word "NOTICE" in red capital letters at least six inches high. The remaining lettering shall be in black capital letters a minimum of three inches in height. Notice shall contain at least the following language: "This property is the subject of a special use hearing for a PUD before the Cook County Zoning Board of Appeals on (date) at (time) at (location)."

B. Written notice shall be served by regular mail and also by certified mail, with return receipt requested, at least 15 days before the hearing, by the Zoning Board of Appeals to the clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the property for which the PUD application has been filed. ~~Notice shall also be sent, in the same manner,~~ to the clerk of the township, the superintendent of each school district and the fire chief of the local fire protection district in which the property is located. The applicant shall serve written notice, by certified mail with return receipt requested, to property owners within 250 feet of the lot lines of the proposed PUD, whose names appear on the Cook County tax records, as to the date, time and location of the public hearing. For condominium developments that are located within 250 feet of the lot lines of the proposed PUD, only the condominium association shall be served with notice. The notices shall contain the same information as the posted notice and shall also contain the legal description of the property, the common address of the property, the name of the applicant, the applicant's representative and a brief description of the requested PUD. In addition, notice of all hearings shall be sent to each civic or property owners' organization requesting notice of hearings on special uses. Failure to notify a civic or property owners' organization, however, shall not invalidate the hearing. Supplemental or additional notices shall be published or distributed as prescribed by Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. All required notices shall be provided at the expense of the applicant. Applicant shall submit proof of mailing for all required notices. Applicants shall also file a sworn affidavit with the Department of Building and Zoning certifying compliance with the notice requirements of this section.

C. Except as indicated in subsection B, the aApplicants shall be responsible for the preparation of both posted and mailed notices and shall be solely responsible for adequacy and accuracy of the information. The applicant shall also be responsible for placing and maintaining posted notice and for mailing and maintaining records of written notices. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be responsible for assuring that notice by newspaper publication, at the expense of the applicant, is given.

9.5.9. *Hearing.* The Zoning Board of Appeals shall hold ~~at least one~~ a public hearing for a proposed PUD ~~in the township in which the property is located. At the hearing, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall make the report from the Bureau of Administration a part of the record.~~ The hearing shall be conducted in accordance with Article 13 of this Ordinance and the Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. An authorized representative of any Cook County department that provided comments on the application ~~and/or the Bureau of Administration~~ shall testify at the hearing if requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals. The hearing shall take place at the Cook County Administration Building unless the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals determines that the County Building has more adequate facilities for such hearing. A record of proceedings, examinations, and other official actions shall be preserved in the manner prescribed by Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. If there is a judicial proceeding for a violation of any Cook County Ordinance involving the subject property, the applicant shall not be entitled to seek, nor shall the Zoning Board of Appeals grant, more than one continuance. The hearing shall be transcribed by a court reporter of the applicant's choosing. Failure of the applicant to provide a transcript of the hearing(s) within 30 days following the hearing shall void the application. The deadline to submit a transcript may be extended by the Zoning Board of Appeals once, for a maximum of 30 additional days.

9.5.10. *Standards and findings of fact and recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals.*

A. Applicants for PUD approval shall satisfy the following standards:

1. PUD conforms with the planning objectives, policies and maps of the County as specified in the Cook County Comprehensive Land Use and Policies Plan.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

2. PUD is of a type and character and contains uses that are needed in the area.
3. PUD is designed and laid out to preserve environmentally sensitive areas, natural resources, habitat and topographic features to the fullest extent possible.
4. PUD is designed in conformity with the provisions of the Cook County Subdivision Manual or any successor subdivision document.
5. PUD is designed to provide horizontal spacing between buildings which takes into consideration the purpose and objectives of this article.
6. PUD complies with the industrial performance standards enumerated in Article 6 of this Ordinance if the PUD contains industrial uses.
7. PUD complies with the parking requirements enumerated in Article 11 of this ordinance.
8. PUD provides appropriate yards, setbacks and buffers between the PUD and adjacent zoning lots. The applicant shall specifically request, in writing, any ~~variation~~variance from the required setbacks.
9. PUD has adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities.
10. PUD has ingress and egress designed to minimize traffic congestion in public streets.
11. PUD and its maintenance and operation will not be detrimental to or endanger public health, safety or general welfare.
12. PUD and its maintenance and operation will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the uses already permitted, nor diminish and impair property values within the surrounding area.
13. PUD and its maintenance and operation will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding property.
14. PUD shall provide more open space than would be required in a standard subdivision.
15. PUD shall be designed to connect to existing or planned pedestrian and bicycle systems in the vicinity.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- B. ~~Applicants shall, within 30 days after the public hearing, prepare and submit to the Zoning Board of Appeals one original and 15 copies of proposed findings of fact addressing each of the above standards. The applicant may seek, and the Zoning Board of Appeals may grant for good cause shown, one 30-day extension of time for the applicant to submit findings of fact. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall, within seven days of receiving the applicant's proposed findings of fact, forward the proposed findings of fact to the Cook County Commissioner in whose district the property is located, the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control, municipalities located within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts. Any interested party, upon written request to the Zoning Board of Appeals, may review the applicant's proposed findings of fact. County departments, municipalities and other interested persons shall have 30 days from receiving the applicant's proposed findings of fact to file a written response with the Zoning Board of Appeals.~~
- C. ~~Recommendations and comments of the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control, municipalities located within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts shall be considered and addressed in writing by the Zoning Board of Appeals in its findings and recommendations. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall forward the findings of fact and recommendations to be forwarded to the Cook County Board of Commissioners.~~
- D. ~~Written findings of fact and recommendations to approve or deny the application shall be made by the Zoning Board of Appeals within 6090 days after receipt of the applicant's proposed findings of fact on the PUD~~the hearing ~~and shall be submitted to the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Recommendations and comments of the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control, municipalities located within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts shall be considered and addressed in writing by the Zoning Board of Appeals in its findings and recommendations. The findings and recommendations shall include a statement indicating the extent to which the proposed PUD departs from zoning, subdivision and other regulations applicable to the property and the reasons why a departure is or is not in the public interest. The 6090-day period may be extended by the Zoning Board of Appeals once, for no more than a maximum of 930 additional days if the Zoning Board of Appeals granted an extension pursuant to this article. Failure of the applicant to provide a transcript of the hearing(s) within 60 days following the hearing shall void the application.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- E. Recommendation for approval of the preliminary PUD plan shall not be made by the Zoning Board of Appeals unless it makes written findings of fact that the proposed use satisfies each of the PUD standards and is in the best interest of the public. ~~In all cases the Zoning Board of Appeals' recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners are advisory only.~~
- F. The Zoning Board of Appeals may recommend; the imposition of conditions and restrictions upon preliminary plan approval; ~~variance~~departure from the general provisions, regulations and standards of this article; and/or ~~variance~~departure from any of the applicable district regulations when it deems a departure is in the public interest. In all cases, the Zoning Board of Appeals' recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners are advisory only.

9.5.11. Action by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

- A. ~~The Cook County Board of Commissioners may approve or deny, by motion, an application for preliminary plan approval. Failure of the Cook County Board of Commissioners to take action within 60 days of receiving the Zoning Board of Appeals' findings and recommendations shall operate as a denial of an application for preliminary plan approval. The 60 day period may be extended if a request for an extension is made by the applicant or by a Cook County Board Commissioner and is granted by the Board of Commissioners.~~
- B. The Cook County Board of Commissioners has the authority to: impose conditions and restrictions upon preliminary plan approval; depart from the general provisions, regulations and standards of this article; and/or depart from any of~~depart from strict conformance with the requirements and standards enumerated in this article; vary the applicable district regulations; and impose conditions and restrictions upon the PUD application~~ when it deems a departure is in the public interest.
- C. Applications for preliminary plan approval shall be approved by a favorable vote of three-quarters of all members of the Cook County Board of Commissioners in cases where the Zoning Board of Appeals has not recommended adoption at a proposed PUD or when a written protest against the proposed PUD has been received in accordance with Article 13.
- D. Approval of the preliminary plan and satisfaction of any conditions and restrictions imposed by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall be conditions precedent to submission of an application for PUD ordinance.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

9.6. Final Plan Approval.

9.6.1. Application and supporting documents. The applicant shall, within one year from the date of preliminary plan approval, submit an application for PUD Ordinance to the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning. The applicant shall submit one original ~~and 15 copies of the~~ application and the following supporting documents:

A. Final PUD plat, suitable for recording with the Cook County Recorder of Deeds, which includes the following information:

1. Designation of lots and the division of all other property, including common open areas and building sites. If property within a final plat is to be subdivided, a subdivision plat is also required.
2. Final site plans including legal description of all lots and each separate, unsubdivided area, including common open space, within the PUD.
3. Exact location of all buildings, structures, streets, drives, parking lots, sidewalks, drainage and utility easements, detention easements and conservation easements, landscaping and other proposed site improvements.
4. Final architectural plans setting forth the type and style of construction and materials to be used in proposed buildings, including the height and area of each building.
5. Certificates, seals and signatures necessary for dedicating property and recording the final plat.
6. Tabulation of separate unsubdivided use area, land area, number of buildings, number of dwelling units and dwelling units per acre.
7. Final landscape architectural plans and specifications.
8. Final lighting plans and specifications.
9. Signage plans.

B. Common open space documents which verify that common open space will be permanently preserved and streets, walkways and common spaces will be maintained and repaired in perpetuity. Common open space shall be either conveyed to a municipal or public corporation, to a not-for-profit corporation or entity established for the purpose of benefiting the owners and residents or retained by the applicant with legally binding guarantees providing for perpetual maintenance, operation, improvements and repairs. All property conveyed to a not-for-profit corporation, or like entity, shall be subject to the right of the corporation or entity to impose a legally enforceable lien on all property within the PUD for maintenance and improvement of the common open space.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

C. Final construction engineering plans, signed and sealed by an Illinois licensed professional engineer, for public facilities and improvements approved by the Cook County Highway Department. Public facilities and improvements shall be constructed upon approval of the PUD Ordinance and a construction performance bond shall be posted to guarantee construction of required infrastructure. The performance bond shall be payable to Cook County and be sufficient to cover the full cost of the facilities and improvements plus 15 percent.

D. Detailed plans signed and sealed by an Illinois licensed professional engineer for the construction and installation of site amenities, including buildings, lakes and other site improvements.

E. Final construction schedule which shall include the projected completion date of the entire project and completion dates of any intermediate phases of the development.

F. Statement indicating current ownership of the property and information regarding intent to sell all or portions of the development.

G. Detailed plans depicting the size and location of dedicated parkland and school sites or the amount of any cash contribution to the local park and school district.

H. Proof from the Cook County Clerk's Office in the [event] that no delinquent taxes exist on any portion of the property.

I. Final agreements, provisions or covenants which will govern the perpetual maintenance, operation and improvements of the PUD. These documents shall be recorded at the same time as the final PUD plat.

9.6.2. *Fee.* An application for PUD Ordinance shall be accompanied by a fee established by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

9.6.3. *Department reviews.* The ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Zoning Board of Appeals shall forward one copy of the application for PUD ordinance, plat and supporting documents to the Cook County Commissioner in whose district the property is located, the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Zoning Board of Appeals, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Department of Public Health, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control and the Cook County Plat Officer for certification that the PUD, plat and supporting documents are in substantial conformance with the approved preliminary plan and other sections of this ordinance. The departments shall have ~~307~~ days from receipt of the application for PUD Ordinance to furnish the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Zoning Board of Appeals with their ~~written~~ comments. Upon receipt of the comments from the departments, the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Zoning Board of Appeals shall make them available to the applicant or its representative upon request, and allow the applicant or its representative to submit a response within 15 days. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall, within 30 days, certify whether the application for final plan approval and supporting documents are in substantial compliance with the approved preliminary plans and shall provide a recommendation to approve or deny the application to the Zoning Committee of the Cook County Board of Commissioners within 30 days after receiving the comments from the departments. ~~The applicant or its representative may, within the same 30-day period, review the various Cook County department comments and submit a response to the Bureau of Administration.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

9.6.4. *Preparation of ordinance.* The ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Zoning Board of Appeals shall, when all conditions and procedures have been satisfied, prepare the PUD Ordinance which shall address the standards of this article and any conditions imposed on the PUD. If a map amendment is recommended in connection with the PUD, the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Zoning Board of Appeals shall include a separate section in the PUD Ordinance which shall address the map amendment standards contained in Article 13 and any conditions to be imposed on the map amendment. The ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Zoning Board of Appeals shall forward the proposed PUD Ordinance to the Zoning Committee of the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

9.6.5. *Action by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.* The Cook County Board of Commissioners may approve or deny the proposed PUD ordinance. ~~The failure of the Cook County Board to take action within 60 days of receiving the proposed Ordinance from the Bureau of Administration Zoning Board of Appeals shall operate as a denial. The 60 day period may be extended if a request for an extension is made by the applicant or a Cook County Board Commissioner and is granted by the Board of Commissioners.~~ A favorable vote of three-quarters of all members of the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall be required when a written protest to the application for preliminary plan was filed pursuant to Article 13.

9.6.6. *Conditions and restrictions.* The Cook County Board of Commissioners may, by ordinance, impose conditions and restrictions on a PUD to assure compliance with the standards and requirements of this ordinance. In addition, the Cook County Board may require evidence and guarantees to ensure that the applicant complies with the conditions of the PUD. Failure of the applicant to comply with conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this ordinance.

9.6.7. *Recordation.* The applicant, upon adoption of a PUD ordinance, shall record the PUD plat, common open space documents, dedications, agreements, provisions or covenants with the Cook County Recorder of Deeds. Recording the PUD plat and supporting documents shall constitute notice of the restrictions placed upon the property and act as a zoning control device.

9.6.8. *Building permits.* The Department of Building and Zoning may not issue building permits until the PUD plat and supporting documents have been recorded with the County Recorder of Deeds. The applicant shall present proof of recording to the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning. Construction authorized by a building permit shall be in full conformance with the recorded PUD plat. Failure of the applicant to develop and construct the PUD according to the PUD Ordinance shall constitute a violation of the zoning ordinance.

9.7. - Changes in an approved PUD.

A change to an approved PUD shall be made as follows:

9.7.1. *Major and minor changes.*

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

A. Changes to the PUD which alter the concept, intent, standards or conditions of the PUD established by the preliminary plan, and/or the PUD ordinance, shall be construed by the Zoning Board of Appeals as a major modification necessitating reconsideration of the PUD. Where a major modification is sought, the applicant shall make application to the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning for an amendment to the preliminary plan and/or PUD ordinance. The application shall be processed in accordance with the procedures established for review and approval of the preliminary plan. The documentation required to be submitted by the applicant shall be sufficient to provide for review of the proposed amendment. The ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning shall be authorized to determine the sufficiency of the documentation submitted in support of the proposed amendment and to require such additional documentation deemed necessary to review the application for amendment. The amendment to the preliminary plan and/or PUD Ordinance shall otherwise be processed as an original application subject to all notices, reviews, hearings and approvals required by this article.

1. A major change to an approved PUD is a change to the approved site plan and supporting maps and materials that ~~alters~~ results in any of the following ~~elements~~:
 - a. An increase in density for any phase of the development or for the entire development;
 - b. An increase in the approved floor area ratio;
 - c. A reduction in the approved landscape material in quantity or in size of material;
 - d. An increase in building height;
 - e. A change in the type of dwelling unit;
 - f. A reduction in the amount of open space or a change in the location of the open space; or
 - g. Any change in the approved site plan which results in moving a building more than 20 feet.
2. All other changes shall be construed as minor changes and shall be reviewed and approved by the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning.

B. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall make a recommendation to the Zoning and Building Committee of the County Board regarding whether a plan with a major change shall be approved or denied, with final approval by the Board of Commissioners.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- C. Changes to the approved phasing schedule:
1. In the event the petitioner/developer anticipates a time delay in meeting the completion date for any or all of the phases of the planned unit development, the applicant may file a written request to the Chairman of the Committee on Zoning and Building of the Cook County Board of Commissioners at least 20 days prior to the expiration of said completion date.
 2. The Zoning and Building Committee will review and may recommend to the President and Board of Commissioners an extension of said completion date for any length of time as deemed justifiable by the President and Board of Commissioners.
 3. Should an approved PUD fail to meet any portion of its improvement/phasing schedule, the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning shall review the circumstances and recommend one of the following actions to the Committee on Zoning and Building of the Cook County Board of Commissioners, with final approval by the Board of Commissioners:
 - a. ~~That the~~The use for the entire area be continued with a revised time schedule;
 - b. ~~That the~~The PUD be revoked and the property be appropriately rezoned; or
 - c. ~~That a~~A new public hearing by the Zoning Board of Appeals be scheduled on the PUD in accordance with the procedures for preliminary PUD approval.

9.8. Reversion and extension.

9.8.1. *Reversion.* For purposes of this section, issuance of a building permit for any phase of development shall establish the PUD. The applicant's failure to apply for a building permit within one year of adoption of the PUD Ordinance shall, without further action, cause the PUD Ordinance to be null and void. With respect to a map amendment approved in conjunction with a PUD ordinance, the applicant's failure to apply for a building permit within one year of adoption of the PUD Ordinance shall, without further action, cause the the map amendment ~~shall~~ to be null and void and the property ~~shall~~ to revert to its zoning classification immediately prior to the PUD application.

9.8.2. *Extension.* The applicant may apply for an extension of the one-year application period prescribed in Sections 9.6.1 and 9.8.1. The applicant is limited to one 12-month extension under each section. An application for extension shall be filed with the ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning before the expiration of the applicable time period and shall be accompanied by a fee established by the Cook County Board of Commissioners. The ~~Bureau of Administration~~ Department of Building and Zoning may recommend, and the Cook County Board of Commissioners may approve, the application for an extension for good cause shown. Failure to apply for an extension in the time prescribed shall render the application null and void.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

ARTICLE 13. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT.

13.3. Zoning Board of Appeals.

13.3.1. Membership. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall be composed of seven members: five voting members who shall be appointed by the President of the Cook County Board of Commissioners with the advice and consent of the Cook County Board of Commissioners; and two ex-officio, nonvoting members, consisting of the Chairman of the ~~Building and Zoning and Building~~ Committee of the Cook County Board of Commissioners and the ~~Chief Administrative Officer~~ Chief of the Bureau of Economic Development of Cook County. Ex-officio members may be represented by a designee at any hearing or meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals. As of June 1, 2013, voting members shall receive compensation of \$500.00 per official meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals where the member participates in person or by viewing a record of proceeding where action is required not to exceed \$12,000.00, with no other fringe or pension benefits, and an allowance for expenses as provided by the Cook County Board of Commissioners in its annual appropriation Ordinance. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall report the number of official meetings it has conducted on a quarterly basis to the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals serving at the time of adoption of this Ordinance shall serve for the remaining term of their appointments, or until their respective successors are appointed. All new and renewed terms of office for Zoning Board of Appeals members shall be for five years.

One of the members of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be designated by the President of the Cook County Board of Commissioners with the advice and consent of the Cook County Board of Commissioners as Chairman of the Zoning Board of Appeals, and shall hold office until a successor is appointed. The President of the Cook County Board of Commissioners with the advice and consent of the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall have the power to remove for cause any member of the Zoning Board of Appeals. Vacancies on the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be filled by appointment of the President of the Cook County Board of Commissioners with the advice and consent of the Cook County Board of Commissioners for the unexpired term of the member whose position has become vacant.

13.3.2. Jurisdiction. The Zoning Board of Appeals is vested with the following jurisdiction and authority:

A. Hear and decide appeals from any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the Department of Building and Zoning under this ordinance.

B. Hear and make recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners on applications for authorized variations~~ances~~, on variations~~ances~~ from any quantitative requirement of this ordinance, and for all applications referred by the Department of Building and Zoning or the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

C. Hear applications for special uses, planned unit developments, map amendments and unique uses as set forth in this ordinance. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall report its findings and recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

D. Conduct hearings at the request of the Cook County Board of Commissioners for map amendments to this Ordinance and make recommendations to the Board of Commissioners.

E. Conduct hearings at the request of the Cook County Board of Commissioners for text amendments to this Ordinance and make recommendations to the Board of Commissioners.

F. Conduct hearings at the request of the Cook County Board of Commissioners for amendments to the Cook County Comprehensive Land Use and Policies Plan and make recommendations to the Board of Commissioners.

G. Initiate, direct and review studies of this Ordinance and make recommendations to the Zoning and Building Committee of the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

H. Hear and decide matters as set forth in this Ordinance and matters referred to it by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

I. Duties as the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall by ordinance, Resolution or direction provide.

13.3.3. Meetings and rules. The meetings of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be held at the call of the Chairman at such times as the Zoning Board of Appeals may determine. Hearings conducted by the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be considered public meetings under the Illinois Open Meetings Act and shall be held in conformance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act. Ex-officio members, or their designees, may fully participate in meetings, but shall not vote on any matters before the Zoning Board of Appeals. For purposes of conducting a public meeting, a quorum of four members shall be present in person at the meeting, and two of the four members present may be ex-officio members or their designees. For purposes of conducting a vote at a public meeting, three voting members must be present in person at the meeting. Any person may appear and testify at a hearing. The Chairman or Acting Chairman may administer oaths and subpoena witnesses. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall keep minutes of its proceedings showing the vote of each member upon each question. If any voting member is absent or fails to vote, that shall be reflected in the minutes. Zoning Board of Appeals voting members may not vote by proxy. Records shall be kept of all hearings and other official actions of the Zoning Board of Appeals. Applications, exhibits and all documents filed by applicants, as well as transcripts of hearings if provided, meetings, testimony and deliberations, shall constitute the record of the Zoning Board of Appeals. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be the keeper of the records. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall adopt its own rules and procedures, not in conflict with this Ordinance or with applicable State of Illinois Statutes, and may select or appoint such officers as it deems necessary. A copy of every rule, regulation, amendment, order, requirement, decision or determination of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be filed immediately with the Department of Building and Zoning and shall be a public record.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.3.4. Decisions. The decisions and findings of the Zoning Board of Appeals, except as provided in 13.3.5, shall be final administrative decisions and shall be subject to review as provided by law.

13.3.5. Appeals from decisions of the Zoning Administrator.

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall hear and decide appeals from an administrative order, requirement or determination of the Department of Building and Zoning under this ordinance.

An appeal may be taken to the Zoning Board of Appeals by any person or entity or by any officer, department, board or bureau aggrieved by a decision of the Department of Building and Zoning under this ordinance. An appeal shall be taken within 35 days after the date of the Department of Building and Zoning's decision by filing with the Zoning Administrator and the Zoning Board of Appeals a notice of appeal specifying the grounds for the appeal. Notice of appeal shall be given to all persons or entities entitled to receive notice as provided by Section 13.7.3.

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall select a reasonable time and place for hearing an appeal and give notice to the aggrieved person or entity and the Department of Building and Zoning. The hearing shall take place within 30 days after the Zoning Board of Appeals receives notice of appeal.

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall render a written decision on the appeal within 30 days after the hearing. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall forward its decision to all parties of record. The Zoning Board of Appeals may affirm, reverse, wholly or in part, or modify a decision of the Department of Building and Zoning. A written decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall contain findings of fact which support its decision. If the Zoning Board of Appeals affirms the decision of the Department of Building and Zoning, the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals is a final administrative determination and shall be subject to review as provided by law.

If the Zoning Board of Appeals reverses the decision of the Department of Building and Zoning, the Department of Building and Zoning has the right to appeal the Zoning Board of Appeals' decision to the Cook County Board of Commissioners. The matter shall be heard upon the record of the Zoning and Building Committee, or a subcommittee, ("Committee") of the Cook County Board of Commissioners. No additional testimony shall be taken and no additional documents shall be filed. The Committee shall provide notice of its hearing of an appeal as provided in this section. The Committee may affirm, reverse, wholly or in part, or modify the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

If the Committee reverses the Zoning Board of Appeals, the decision of the Committee shall be a final administrative determination and shall be subject to review as provided by law. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall maintain complete records of all actions relative to appeals.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.3.6. Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

A. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be appointed by the President of the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

B. Duties of the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be as follows:

1. Maintain records of the Zoning Board of Appeals.
2. Forward to the County Board of Commissioners final findings of fact and recommendations of the Zoning Board of Appeals for map amendments and special uses and such other matters under this Ordinance which require consideration or action by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.
3. Administer duties which may be delegated to the Secretary by the Cook County Board of Commissioners and the Zoning Board of Appeals.

13.4. Building permits/zoning certificates.

13.4.1. Application. An application for a building permit shall be deemed an application for a zoning certificate. An application shall be accompanied by the following:

A. Plat of survey, ~~in triplicate~~, drawn to scale and showing actual dimensions of lots and blocks, as required by the Department of Building and Zoning. The plat shall be dated within the prior ~~six-month~~five year period and it shall be certified by a land surveyor licensed by the State of Illinois as a true copy of the property according to the registered or recorded plat of subdivision.

B. Site plan signed and sealed by a registered professional engineer in the State of Illinois, in triplicate, drawn to scale in such form as may be prescribed by the Department of Building and Zoning. The site plan shall show the ground area, height and bulk of the building or structure, building lines in relation to lot lines, use to be made of the building, structure or land and such other information as may be required by the Department of Building and Zoning.

13.4.2. Procedure. A copy of each plat of survey and site plan shall be attached to the application for a building permit when it is submitted to the Department of Building and Zoning for zoning certification. The Department of Building and Zoning shall retain the application, attached plats and plans as public records.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.6. – Variationsnces.

13.6.1. Purpose. In order to provide a streamlined approval process for minor modifications of selected zoning standards, the Zoning Administrator is hereby given the authority to review and approve applications for variances of ten percent or less of the regulations as to location of structures or as to bulk requirements without referral to the Zoning Board of Appeals and without a public hearing in accordance with this ordinance. The Zoning Board of Appeals, after a public hearing, shall recommend to the Cook County Board of Commissioners to grant or deny all other authorized variationsnces under this ordinance. In making a recommendation to grant a variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall make findings of fact in accordance with standards prescribed in this Ordinance for variationsnces, and shall also find that there are practical difficulties or particular hardships which prevent the applicant from strictly following regulations of this ordinance.

13.6.2. Application, hearing, and notice of hearing.

A. An application for a variationnce shall be filed in ~~triplicate~~ with, and shall contain such information as required by, the Department of Building and Zoning. Electronic submission of application and supporting documents shall be encouraged. Applications for sign variances will also require the submittal of one detailed, signed and sealed architectural drawing of the proposed sign and a detailed sketch and/or rendering of the sign. In addition, the applicant shall file a sworn affidavit containing a complete list of the names and last known addresses of the owners of properties on lots lying within 150 feet of the property lines of the lot for which the variance is sought with his or her variance application, whose names appear on the Cook County tax records. Only the name and last known address of the condominium association shall be required for condominium developments that are located within 150 feet from the subject property. The Zoning Administrator shall reject applications for variationsnces which do not comply with the provisions of this ordinance. Applications for sign variances will also require the submittal of one detailed, signed and sealed architectural drawing of the proposed sign and a detailed sketch and/or rendering of the sign. A copy of each application for variance which complies with the provisions of this Ordinance shall be forwarded by tThe Department of Building and Zoning shall forward one copy of the application to the Cook County Board Commissioner in whose district the property is located. The application shall contain such information as required by the rules of the Department of Building and Zoning.

B. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall hold at least one a public hearing on each application for a variance, except those which the Zoning Administrator intends to grant pursuant to Section 13.6.9 of this article. An authorized representative of any County department that provided comment on the application shall testify at the hearing if requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals. The hearing shall take place at the Cook County Administration Building unless the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals determines that the County Building has more adequate facilities for such hearing. A record of proceedings, examinations, and other official actions shall be preserved in the manner prescribed by Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. However, the hearing will not be transcribed by a court reporter unless requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals or another interested party, and in that case the cost of the transcription must be borne by the person requesting it. If there is a judicial proceeding for a violation of any Cook County Ordinance involving the subject property, the applicant shall not be entitled to seek, nor shall the Zoning Board of Appeals grant, more than one continuance.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

C. Notice of the time and place of a public hearing for all variance applications, except those which the Zoning Administrator intends to grant pursuant to Section 13.6.9 of this article, shall be published by the Zoning Board of Appeals at least once, not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days, before the hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in Cook County. The published notice may be supplemented by additional notice as required by the rules of the Zoning Board of Appeals. In addition, written notice of public hearings, including the reference number assigned by the Zoning Board of Appeals, and the place, date, and time of the hearing shall be given not less than seven days or more than 45 days before the hearing, by the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be as follows: A. Notices shall be given to the clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the subject property current real estate tax assesses, as shown on the records of the County Tax Collector, and to all persons whose names are listed on mailboxes, doorbells or signs on lots lying within 150 feet of the property lines of the lot for which the variation is sought in the sworn affidavit filed by the applicant with his or her variance application. When a condominium development is within 150 feet of the subject property, a Notice need only be sent to the condominium association of condominium developments that are located within 150 feet from the subject property. In addition, the applicant shall serve notice to the clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the subject property. B. Notices should be in writing and shall give the variation number assigned by the Zoning Board of Appeals, the place, date and time of the hearing and shall be given not less than seven days nor more than 45 days before the hearing. The applicant shall file a sworn affidavit containing a complete list of the names and last known addresses of the owners of the properties and other entities required to be served. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall maintain a record of the method of service, and the names and last known addresses of the persons served with copies of the notice. The affidavit shall create a presumption that notice was given as required.

13.6.3. Standards. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall not recommend to the Board of Commissioners that it grant or deny a variance, unless the Zoning Board of Appeals first makes written findings of fact on each of the following standards based upon evidence presented:

A. Physical surroundings, shape or topographical condition of the property would result in hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the provisions of this Ordinance were followed.

B. Conditions which are unique to the property exist and are not applicable to other properties within the same zoning classification.

C. Variation sought is not based exclusively upon a desire to make the property more profitable.

D. Hardship or alleged difficulty is caused by this Ordinance and not by any person presently having an interest in the property.

E. Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other properties or improvements in the neighborhood.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

F. ~~Variation~~ will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent properties, substantially increase congestion in the public streets, increase the danger of fire, cause increased flooding risk to adjacent property, endanger public safety or substantially diminish or impair property values within adjacent neighborhoods.

13.6.4. Conditions and restrictions. The Zoning Board of Appeals may recommend to the Board of Commissioners such conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a ~~variation~~ as may be necessary to reduce or minimize the effect of the ~~variation~~ upon other properties in the neighborhood and to better carry out the general intent of this ordinance. Failure of the applicant to comply with conditions and restrictions imposed shall constitute a violation of this ordinance.

13.6.5. Authorized ~~variations~~nces. A ~~variation~~ from the regulations of this Ordinance may be granted by the Cook County Board of Commissioners only in the following instances and in accordance with standards set forth in this ordinance:

- A. Permit a yard or setback less than the yard or setback required by this ordinance.
- B. Permit the use of a lot or lots for a use which is otherwise prohibited solely because of the insufficient area or width of the lot or lots. The Cook County Board of Commissioners shall not grant a ~~variation~~ which results in the division of a conforming lot or lots into ~~two or more~~ any nonconforming lots. The Cook County Board of Commissioners shall not allow a lot less than 40,000 square feet to be used for an individual septic system and water supply system, unless the Cook County Department of Public Health has approved the systems.
- C. Permit the same off-street parking facility to qualify as a facility for two or more uses, provided the substantial use of the facility by each user does not take place at the same hours of the same days of the week.
- D. Reduce required off-street parking or off-street loading facilities.
- E. Increase the maximum distance that required parking spaces are permitted to be located from the use served.
- F. Increase dimensions or square footage of signs as provided in Article 12 and Ordinance No. 02-O-05.
- G. Increase the maximum gross floor area of any use required by this ordinance.
- H. Grant ~~variations~~nces for property located in a floodplain in accordance with the Floodplain Ordinance for Cook County, Illinois.
- I. Reduce lot size when property has been diminished in size by eminent domain or by a conveyance in lieu of an eminent domain proceeding.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

J. Grant height variationsnces for freestanding cellular tower facilities as provided in Ordinance No. 01-O-32. No height variationnce for a cellular radio facility which is attached to or installed on a building shall be allowed.

K. Grant height variationsnces for fences.

13.6.6. Recommending variationsnces. A majority vote of three of the five voting members of the Zoning Board of Appeals is required to recommend to the Cook County Board of Commissioners to grant or deny a variationnce. No decision of the Cook County Board of Commissioners granting a variationnce shall be valid for more than one year, unless a building permit is obtained and construction of the building or the use commenced.

13.6.7. Action by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

A. Final action shall not be taken by the Cook County Board of Commissioners on an application for a variationnce until the Zoning Board of Appeals' findings of fact and recommendations have been received.

B. Variationsnces shall be approved by a favorable vote of three-quarters of all members of the Cook County Board of Commissioners in cases where the Zoning Board of Appeals has not recommended approval of a proposed variationnce or where there has been a written protest filed against a proposed variationnce in accordance with Section 13.13 of this ordinance.

~~C. Applications for variationsnces shall be deemed denied if the Cook County Board of Commissioners has not taken final action within 60 days of receiving the Zoning Board of Appeals' findings and recommendations. The 60 day period may be extended if a request for an extension is made by the applicant.~~

~~D.~~ The Cook County Board of Commissioners may impose conditions and restrictions upon a variationnce in order to assure that the public health, safety and welfare is adequately protected.

13.6.8. Effect of denial. An application for a variationnce which has been denied wholly or in part by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall not be resubmitted for a period of one year from the date of the denial, except on grounds of new evidence or proof of changed conditions found to be valid by the Zoning Board of Appeals.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.6.9. Administrative Adjustments. An application for a variance of ten percent or less of the regulations as to location of structures or as to bulk requirements may be granted by the Zoning Administrator without referral to the Zoning Board of Appeals and without a public hearing provided that:

A. The Zoning Administrator has not granted an application for variance of ten percent or less of the regulations as to location of the same or similar structure or bulk requirements submitted by the same applicant in the past 5 years from the date of application;

B. Proof of compliance with the notice requirements to owners of the adjoining properties is submitted by the applicant, in accordance with the rules of the Department of Building and Zoning;

C. No objection is submitted by the owners of the adjoining properties, in accordance with the rules of the Department of Building and Zoning;

D. The Zoning Administrator finds that the variance sought eliminates an unnecessary inconvenience to the applicant and will have no appreciable adverse impact on the health, safety, or general welfare of adjoining property owners or the general public;

E. A copy of the application is forwarded to the Cook County Board Commissioner in whose district the property is located with a notice of intent to grant the variance without referral to the Zoning Board of Appeals and without a public hearing; and

F. No objection is submitted by the Cook County Board Commissioner in whose district the property is located within 14 days of the date of the notice of intent to grant the variance.

If any of the above conditions are not met, the Zoning Administrator shall refer the application for variance to the Zoning Board of Appeals.

In granting an application for a variance of ten percent or less of the regulations as to location of structures or as to bulk requirements, the Zoning Administrator may impose conditions and restrictions upon a variance sought under this Section in order to assure that the public health, safety and welfare is adequately protected. No decision of the Zoning Administrator granting a variance shall be valid for more than one year, unless a building permit is obtained and construction of the building or the use commenced.

13.7. Map amendments.

13.7.1. Authority. The districts established by this Ordinance may be amended by the Cook County Board of Commissioners. No map amendment shall be made without consideration of existing conditions, property values, trends of development and uses to which property is devoted.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.7.2. Initiation. A map amendment may be proposed by the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners or by any person or entity having an interest in the subject property. A map amendment shall be initiated as provided in this article.

13.7.3. Notice of application. An applicant shall, not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days before filing an application, serve written notice, of intent to apply for a map amendment by certified mail with return receipt requested, to the property owners within 250 feet of the lot lines of the subject property. ~~The property owners receiving notice shall be those persons or entities whose names appear on the Cook County tax records. For condominium developments that are located within 250 feet of the lot line of the subject property, only the condominium association shall be served with notice.~~ The number of feet occupied by public roads, streets, alleys and other public ways shall be excluded in computing the 250 feet requirement. Notice need not be sent to owners more than 400 feet from the subject property when public streets, alleys and other public ways are included in the computation. In addition, the applicant shall serve notice to the clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the subject property, the superintendent of each local school district, the fire chief of each local fire protection district, the township clerk and township highway commissioner. When the applicant is either the President of a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners, notice shall be served in accordance with this section, by the Zoning Board of Appeals. Notice shall contain the address of the subject property, a brief statement of the nature of the application, the name and address of the applicant and a statement of the approximate date when the applicant intends to apply. If the property owner on which notice is served cannot be found, or the mailed notice is returned, the notice requirements of this provision shall be deemed satisfied provided the applicant made a bonafide effort to determine the owner's address.

13.7.4. Application.

A. ~~An a~~Applications for a map amendment shall be submitted to the Department of Building and Zoning in such form and accompanied by such information as required by the Department of Building and Zoning. The applicant shall file one original ~~and 15 copies of the~~ application and all supporting documents. The applicant shall include a written statement and evidence establishing that the proposed map amendment will conform to the standards set forth in this article. The applicant shall ~~attest~~disclose, and the Department of Building and Zoning shall independently verify, ~~that no~~whether a judicial proceeding for a violation of any Cook County Ordinance is pending pertaining to the subject property.

B. Applicants shall ~~furnish to file with~~ the Department of Building and Zoning a sworn affidavit containing a complete list of the names and last known addresses of the persons to be served with notice pursuant to 13.7.3. ~~Applicant(s) shall also furnish a written statement to the Department of Building and Zoning certifying compliance with the notice requirements of this ordinance.~~

C. ~~Notices, as set forth in this article, shall be served by the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals when the applicant is either the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Notice shall be served not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days before a scheduled public hearing.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

D. Applications shall be accompanied by proposed findings of fact addressing each of the standards in Section 13.7.9. (A).

E. Applications which fail to comply with this Section shall be returned by the Zoning Administrator to the applicant, and the accompanying application fee will be reimbursed. The Zoning Administrator ~~may~~ shall retain one copy of the application and supporting documents.

13.7.5. Disclosure. Applicants shall make the following disclosures by sworn affidavit, filed at the time of the application.

A. *Property.*

1. Applicants of property held in a land trust, shall disclose the identity of each beneficiary of the trust including the name, address and percentage of interest of each beneficiary. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
2. Applicants of property owned by a partnership or association of two or more persons holding a common interest shall disclose the name and address of each partner or associate shall be listed. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
3. Applicants of property owned by a corporation shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of shareholders owning five percent or more of the corporation shall be disclosed. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~

B. *Applicant.*

1. Applicants acting as agents or nominees shall disclose their agency relationship shall be disclosed and the name and address of the principals and their interest in the subject property. If the principals are not individuals, the identity of the principals shall be disclosed as set forth. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
2. Applicants who are either the President or a member of the Cook County Board Commissioners shall disclose any ownership interest in the property or any direct or indirect interest in the property and the nature of the interest. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
3. Applicants who are a partnerships or associations of two or more persons holding a common interest shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of each partner or associate having more than a five-percent interest ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

4. Applicants who are a corporation shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of shareholders owning five percent or more of the corporation. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~

~~C. Applications which fail to comply with this Section shall be returned by the Zoning Administrator to the applicant. The Zoning Administrator shall retain one copy of the application and supporting documents.~~

13.7.6. Processing applications.

Upon receipt of a complete application for map amendment, and at least 15 days before a scheduled hearing date, ~~(The Zoning Board of Appeals)~~ Department of Building and Zoning shall forward a copy of the application, including the applicant's proposed findings of fact and all supporting documentation, to the Cook County Commissioner in whose district the property is located, and shall notify the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, ~~the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning,~~ the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Department of Public Health, and the Cook County Department of Environmental Control that a complete application, including the applicant's proposed findings of fact and all supporting documentation has been submitted and is ready for review at least 30 days before a scheduled hearing date. Each reviewing department shall submit recommendations and comments ~~to the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals~~ at least three~~seven~~ days before the scheduled hearing date. ~~In addition, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall provide notice of the availability of the application and supporting documents for inspection and copying to the superintendents of local school districts, the fire chiefs of local fire protection districts, the township highway commissioner, the township clerk and municipalities within 1½ miles from the subject property.~~

Each reviewing department shall examine the application and supporting documentation based upon the following, as well as similar criteria:

- A. Department of Planning and Development.
 1. Economic impact.
 2. Community need.
 3. Trend of development.
 4. Demographics.
 5. Property values.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- B. Department of Building and Zoning.
 - 1. Site plan review.
 - 2. Land use and permit review of properties in the vicinity of the proposed use.
 - 3. Lot size.
 - 4. Subdivision regulations.
- C. Department of Highways.
 - 1. Wetland mitigation and compensation.
 - 2. Floodway and floodplain capacity and storage.
 - 3. Drainage detention requirements.
 - 4. Roads, bridges, culverts, driveways, sidewalks, ingress, egress and access control.
 - 5. Subdivision regulations.
 - 6. Drainage, utilities, road easements and dedications.
 - 7. Criteria from other regulatory agencies such as the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District, Illinois Department of Transportation, Illinois Department of Natural Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers, local fire protection agencies and townships.
 - 8. Erosion and sediment control requirements.
- D. Forest Preserve Districts.
 - 1. Compatibility of the proposed use with Forest Preserve holdings.
 - 2. Impact on value of Forest Preserve holdings.
 - 3. Future Forest Preserve acquisitions.
- E. Department of Public Health.
 - 1. Lot sizes for private septic systems and wells.
 - 2. Subdivision regulations.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

3. Swimming pools.
4. Public or community well and septic or sewage systems.
5. Health and safety concerns.
- F. Department of Environmental Control.
 1. Noise and odor regulations.
 2. Soil geology and composition.
 3. Wetland mitigation and compensation.
 4. Discharges of effluent and particulate into the air, land and water.
 5. Criteria from other regulatory agencies such as the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, Illinois Department of Natural Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers and United States Environmental Protection Agency.

The Cook County departments' recommendations and comments shall be available to the applicant or its representative, upon request, for review and/or reproduction prior to the hearing date.

13.7.7. Notice of public hearing.

A. Time and place of a public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in Cook County not less than 15 days before the hearing. In addition, at least 15 days before the hearing, notice of the hearing shall be posted on the property proposed to be rezoned in such a way as to be plainly visible from the roadway or right-of-way passing the frontage of the property. Notice posted on the property shall be maintained until the date of hearing on a weatherproof sign that is at least three feet by four feet in size. The sign shall have a white background and contain the word "NOTICE" in red capital letters at least six inches high. The remaining lettering shall be in black capital letters a minimum of three inches in height. Notice shall contain at least the following language: "This property is the subject of a rezoning hearing before the Cook County Zoning Board of Appeals on (date) at (time) at (location)."

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

B. Written notice shall be served by regular mail and also by certified mail, with return receipt requested, at least 15 days before the hearing, by the Zoning Board of Appeals to the clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the property proposed to be rezoned. ~~Notice shall also be sent, in the same manner, to the clerk of the township in which the property is located the superintendent of each school district and the fire chief of the local fire protection district in which the property is located.~~ ~~At~~The applicant shall serve written notice, by certified mail, with return receipt requested, to property owners within 250 feet of the lot line of the subject property, whose names appear on the Cook County tax records, as to the date, time and location of the public hearing. For condominium developments that are located within 250 feet of the lot line of the subject property, only the condominium association shall be served with notice. The notices shall contain the same information as the posted notice and shall also contain the legal description of the property, the common address of the property, the name of the applicant, the applicant's representative and a brief description of the requested map amendment. ~~In addition, notice of all hearings shall be sent to each civic or property owners' organization requesting notice of hearings on map amendments. Failure to notify a civic or property owners' organization, however, shall not invalidate the hearing.~~ Supplemental or additional notices may be published or distributed as prescribed by the Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. All required notices shall be provided at the expense of the applicant. Applicant shall submit proof of mailing for all required notices. Applicants shall also furnish a sworn affidavit to the Zoning Board of Appeals certifying compliance with the notice requirements of this ordinance.

C. Except as indicated in subsection B, the ~~a~~Applicants shall be responsible for the preparation of both posted and mailed notices and shall be solely responsible for the adequacy and accuracy of the information. The applicant shall also be responsible for placing and maintaining posted notice and for mailing and maintaining records of written notices. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be responsible for assuring that notice by newspaper publication, at the expense of the applicant, is given.

D. ~~Copies of an application shall be served in person or by certified mail on the owners of record within ten days after the application is filed when the applicant is the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Where the application is filed by a person having an interest in the subject property, a notice and copy of the application shall be served in like manner upon persons or entities having an interest in the property. .~~ When the applicant is the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners, notice shall be served in accordance with this section, by the Zoning Board of Appeals, not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days before a scheduled public hearing. Notice and service requirements shall be in addition to posting and publishing requirements of this article.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.7.8. Hearing.

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall hold ~~at least one~~ a public hearing on each application for a map amendment ~~in the township in which the property is located.~~ aAn authorized representative of any County department that provided comment on the application shall testify at the hearing if requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals. The hearing shall take place at the Cook County Administration Building unless the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals determines that the County Building has more adequate facilities for such hearing. Provided, that if the owner of any property affected by such proposed map amendment submits a written request to the Zoning Board of Appeals within 14 days of referral by the Cook County Board of Commissioners, Committee on Building and Zoning, such hearing shall be held in the township or road district affected by the terms of such proposed amendment, as provided by State law. A record of proceedings, examinations, and other official actions shall be preserved in the manner prescribed by Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. If there is a judicial proceeding for a violation of any Cook County Ordinance involving the subject property, the applicant shall not be entitled to seek, nor shall the Zoning Board of Appeals grant, ~~more than one~~ continuance. The hearing shall be transcribed by a court reporter of the applicant's choosing. Failure of the applicant to provide a transcript of the hearing(s) within 30 days following the hearing shall void the application. The deadline to submit a transcript may be extended by the Zoning Board of Appeals once, for a maximum of 30 additional days.

13.7.9. Standards and findings of fact and recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

A. Evidence submitted shall be reviewed by the Zoning Board of Appeals to determine whether the proposed use benefits public health, safety and welfare with respect to the following standards:

1. Uses of surrounding property.
2. Zoning classification of surrounding property.
3. Suitability of the subject property for the use permitted under the existing zoning classification.
4. Trend of development in the area.
5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land development in the surrounding area.
6. Extent to which property values are diminished by particular zoning restrictions.
7. Need in the community for the proposed use.
8. Consistency with the Cook County Comprehensive Land Use and Policies Plan.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

~~B. Applicants shall submit one original and 15 copies of proposed findings of fact documenting how the proposed amendment meets the standard to the Zoning Board of Appeals within 30 days of the public hearing. The applicant may seek, and the Zoning Board of Appeals may grant for good cause shown, one 30-day extension of time for the applicant to submit findings of fact. The Zoning Board shall, within seven days from receiving the applicant's proposed findings of fact, forward the proposed findings of fact to the Cook County Commissioners in whose district the property is located, the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Department of Public Health, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control, to each municipality within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts. Any interested party, upon written request to the Zoning Board of Appeals, may review the applicant's proposed findings of fact. County departments, municipalities and other interested persons shall have 30 days from receiving the applicant's proposed findings of fact to file a written response with the Zoning Board of Appeals. The applicant or its representative may, within 14 days of the response period, review and/or furnish the Zoning Board of Appeals with any reply to the written responses filed.~~

~~C. Recommendations and comments of the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control and municipalities within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts shall be considered and addressed in writing by the Zoning Board of Appeals in its findings and recommendations. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall prepare findings of fact and recommendations in accordance with this article.~~

~~D. Written findings of fact and recommendations to approve or deny the application shall be made by the Zoning Board of Appeals within 90 days after the close of a public hearing on a proposed map amendment. The Zoning Board of Appeals and shall be submitted its findings and recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Recommendations and comments of the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control and municipalities within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts shall be considered and addressed in writing by the Zoning Board of Appeals in its findings and recommendations. The 90-day period may be extended by the Zoning Board of Appeals once, for a maximum of 30 additional days if the Zoning Board of Appeals granted an extension pursuant to this article. Failure of the Applicant to provide a transcript of the hearing within 60 days following the hearing shall void the application.~~

~~E. C. Recommendation for the adoption of a proposed map amendment shall not be made by the Zoning Board of Appeals unless it makes written findings of fact that the proposed use satisfies each of the standards and is in the best interest of the public. In all cases, the recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners are advisory only.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.7.10. Action by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

A. Final action shall not be taken on a proposed map amendment by the Cook County Board of Commissioners until the Zoning Board of Appeals' findings of fact and recommendations have been received.

B. Map amendments shall be approved by a favorable vote of three-quarters of all members of the Cook County Board of Commissioners in cases where the Zoning Board of Appeals has not recommended adoption of a proposed map amendment or where there has been a written protest filed against a proposed map amendment in accordance with this article.

~~C. Applications for map amendments shall be deemed denied if the Cook County Board of Commissioners has not taken final action within 60 days of receiving the Zoning Board of Appeals' findings and recommendations. The 60 day period may be extended if a request for an extension is made by the applicant or by a Cook County Board Commissioner and is granted by the Board of Commissioners.~~

~~D.~~ Decisions reached by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall take into account the findings and recommendations of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

~~E.~~ D. Map amendments granted by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall be included in an Ordinance passed by the County Board.

13.7.11. Effect of denial. An application for a map amendment which has been denied wholly or in part by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall not be resubmitted for a period of one year from the date of the denial, except on grounds of new evidence or proof of changed conditions found to be valid by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

13.7.12. Text amendments. The Cook County Board of Commissioner's home rule authority to amend the text of this Ordinance shall not be limited by this article.

13.8. - Special uses.

13.8.1. Purpose. The development and execution of this Ordinance is based upon the division of Cook County into zoning districts. In addition to permitted uses, there are special uses which may be necessary because of the unusual characteristics or services special uses provide to the public. Special uses require case-by-case consideration to determine public need, appropriate location, impact on adjacent, existing or future uses and compatibility to the planned development of the community. Special uses fall into two categories.

A. Uses publicly operated or traditionally associated with a public interest.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

B. Uses generally consistent with permitted uses which give rise to unique problems or benefits by virtue of their impact on neighboring property, public facilities or Cook County as a whole.

13.8.2. Initiation. A special use may be proposed by the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners or by any person or entity having an interest in the subject property. A special use shall be initiated as provided in this article.

13.8.3. Notice of application. Applicants shall, not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days before filing an application, serve written notice of intent to apply for a special use, by certified mail with return receipt requested, to the property owners within 250 feet of the lot lines of the subject property. The property owners receiving notice shall be those persons or entities whose names appear on the Cook County tax records. For condominium developments that are located within 250 feet of the lot line of the subject property, only the condominium association shall be served with notice. The number of feet occupied by public roads, streets, alleys, other public ways shall be excluded in computing the 250 feet requirement. Notice need not be sent to owners more than 400 feet from the subject property when public streets, alleys and other public ways are included in the computation. In addition, the applicant shall serve notice to the clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the subject property, the superintendent of each local school district, the fire chief of each local fire protection district, the township clerk and township highway commissioner. When the applicant is either the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners, notice shall be served in accordance with this section, by the Zoning Board of Appeals. Notice shall contain the address of the subject property, a brief statement of the nature of the application, the name and address of the applicant and a statement of the approximate date when the applicant intends to apply. If the property owner on which notice is served cannot be found, or the mailed notice is returned, the notice requirements of this provision shall be deemed satisfied provided the applicant made a bonafide effort to determine the owner's address.

13.8.4. Application.

A. An applications for a special use shall be submitted to the Department of Building and Zoning in such form and accompanied by such information as required by the Department of Building and Zoning. The applicant shall file one original ~~and 15 copies of the~~ application and all supporting documents. The applicant shall include a written statement and evidence establishing that the proposed special use will conform to the standards set forth in this article. The applicant shall attest, and the Department of Building and Zoning shall independently verify, ~~that whether~~ there is ~~no~~ a judicial proceeding for a violation of any Cook County Ordinance pending pertaining to the subject property.

B. Applicants shall provide a development plan or schedule for phased development of the special use if the special use is not intended to be established within one year. Upon approval, the development plan or schedule for the phased development shall be considered as a limitation and condition on the special use permit.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

C. Applicants shall ~~furnish~~ file with to the Department of Building and Zoning a sworn affidavit containing a complete list of the names and last known addresses of the persons served with notice pursuant to 13.8.3.. ~~The applicant shall also furnish a written statement to the Department of Building and Zoning certifying compliance with the notice requirements of this ordinance.~~

D. ~~Notices, as set forth in this article, shall be served by the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals when the applicant is either the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Notice shall be served not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days before a scheduled public hearing.~~

~~E. Applications shall be accompanied by proposed findings of fact addressing each of the standards in 13.8.9 (A).~~

E. Applications shall be accompanied by a fee as established by the Cook County Board of Commissioners in order to be deemed complete.

F. Applications which fail to comply with this section shall be returned by the Zoning Administrator to the applicant, and the accompanying fee will be reimbursed. The Zoning Administrator may retain one copy of the application and supporting documents.

13.8.5. Disclosure. Applicants shall make the following disclosures by sworn affidavit, filed at the time of the application.

A. *Property.*

1. Applicants of property held in a land trust shall disclose the identity of each beneficiary of the trust including the name, address and percentage of interest of each beneficiary. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
2. Applicants of property owned by a partnership or association of two or more persons holding a common interest shall disclose the name and address of each partner or associate. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
3. Applicants of property owned by a corporation shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of shareholders owning ~~three~~five percent or more of the corporation. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

B. Applicant.

1. Applicants acting as agents or nominees shall disclose their agency relationship and the name and address of the principals, and their interest in the subject property, shall be disclosed. If the principals are not individuals, the identity of the principals shall be disclosed as set forth below. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
2. Applicants who are either the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall disclose any ownership interest in the property or any direct or indirect interest in the property and the nature of the interest. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
3. Applicants who are partnerships or associations of two or more persons holding a common interest shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of each partner or associate having more than a five percent interest. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~
4. Applicants who are corporations shall disclose the name, address and percentage of ownership interest of shareholders owning five percent or more of the corporation. ~~Disclosure shall be a statement under oath and filed at the time of the application.~~

~~C. Applications which fail to comply with this article shall be returned by the Zoning Administrator to the applicant. The Zoning Administrator shall retain one copy of the application and supporting documents.~~

13.8.6. Processing applications.

Upon receipt of a complete application for special use, and at least 15 days before a scheduled hearing date, tThe Zoning Board of Appeals~~Department of Building and Zoning shall forward a copy of the complete application for special use, including the applicant's proposed findings of fact and all supporting documentation, to the Cook County Commissioner in whose district the property is located, and shall notify the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Department of Public Health, and the Cook County Department of Environmental Control that a complete application, including the applicant's proposed findings of fact and all supporting documentation has been submitted and is ready for review~~at least 30 days before a scheduled hearing date. Each reviewing department shall submit recommendations and comments to the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals at least three days before the scheduled hearing date. In addition, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall provide notice of the availability of the application and supporting documents for inspection and copying to the superintendent of local school districts, the fire chiefs of local fire protection districts, the township highway commissioner, the township clerk and municipalities within 1½ miles from the subject property. Each reviewing department shall submit recommendations and comments at least 7 days before the scheduled hearing date.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

Each reviewing department shall examine the application and supporting documentation based upon the following, as well as similar criteria:

- A. Department of Planning and Development.
 - 1. Economic impact.
 - 2. Community need.
 - 3. Trend of development.
 - 4. Demographics.
 - 5. Property values.
- B. Department of Building and Zoning.
 - 1. Site plan review.
 - 2. Land use and permit review of properties in the vicinity of the proposed use.
 - 3. Lot size.
 - 4. Subdivision regulations.
- C. Department of Highways.
 - 1. Wetland mitigation and compensation.
 - 2. Floodway and floodplain capacity and storage.
 - 3. Drainage detention requirements.
 - 4. Roads, bridges, culverts, driveways, sidewalks, ingress and egress and access control.
 - 5. Subdivision regulations.
 - 6. Drainage, utilities and road easements and dedications.
 - 7. Criteria from other regulatory agencies such as the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District, Illinois Department of Transportation, Illinois Department of Natural Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers, local fire protection agencies and townships.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

- 8. Erosion and sediment control requirements.
- D. Forest Preserve District.
 - 1. Compatibility of the proposed use with Forest Preserve holdings.
 - 2. Impact on value of Forest Preserve holdings.
 - 3. Future Forest Preserve acquisitions.
- E. Department of Public Health.
 - 1. Lot sizes for private septic systems and wells.
 - 2. Subdivision regulations.
 - 3. Swimming pools.
 - 4. Public or community well and septic or sewage systems.
 - 5. Health and Safety concerns.
- F. Department of Environmental Control.
 - 1. Noise and odor regulations.
 - 2. Soil geology and composition.
 - 3. Wetland mitigation and compensation.
 - 4. Discharges of effluent and particulate into the air, land and water.
 - 5. Criteria from other regulatory agencies such as the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, Illinois Department of Natural Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers and United States Environmental Protection Agency.

The County department's recommendations and comments shall be available to the applicant or its representative, upon request, for review and/or reproduction prior to the hearing date.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

13.8.7. Notice of public hearing.

A. Time and place of a public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in Cook County not less than 15 days before the hearing. In addition, at least 15 days before the hearing, notice of the hearing shall be posted on the property for which a special use application has been filed in such a way as to be plainly visible from the roadway or right-of-way passing the frontage of the property. Notice posted on the property shall be maintained until the date of hearing on a weatherproof sign that is at least three feet by four feet in size. The sign shall have a white background and contain the word "NOTICE" in red capital letters at least six inches high. The remaining lettering shall be in black capital letters a minimum of three inches in height. Notice shall contain at least the following language: "This property is the subject of a special use hearing before the Cook County Zoning Board of Appeals on (date) at (time) at (location)."

B. Written notice shall be served by regular mail and also by certified mail, with return receipt requested, at least 15 days before the hearing by the Zoning Board of Appeals to the Clerk of each municipality within 1½ miles of the property for which the special use application has been filed. ~~Notice shall also be sent, in the same manner, to the clerk of the township in which the property is located and to the superintendent of each school district and the fire chief of the local fire protection district in which the property is located.~~ An applicant shall serve written notice, by certified mail, with return receipt requested, to property owners within 250 feet of the lot line of the subject property, whose names appear on the Cook County tax records, as to the date, time and location of the public hearing. For condominium developments that are located within 250 feet of the lot line of the subject property, only the condominium association shall be served with notice. The notices shall contain the same information as the posted notice and shall also contain the legal description of the property, the common address of the property, the name of the applicant, the applicant's representative and a brief description of the requested special use. ~~In addition, notice of all hearings shall be sent to each civic or property owners' organization requesting notice of hearings on special uses. Failure to notify a civic or property owners' organization, however, shall not invalidate the hearing.~~ Supplemental or additional notices shall be published or distributed as prescribed by Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. All required notices shall be provided at the expense of the applicant. Applicant shall submit proof of mailing for all required notices. Applicant shall also file a sworn affidavit with the Department of Building and Zoning certifying compliance with the notice requirements of this ordinance.

C. Except as indicated in subsection B, the aApplicants shall be responsible for the preparation of both posted and mailed notices and shall be solely responsible for adequacy and accuracy of the information. The applicant shall also be responsible for placing and maintaining posted notice and for mailing and maintaining records of written notices. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be responsible for assuring that notice by newspaper publication, at the expense of the applicant, is given.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

D. ~~When the applicant is the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners, Copies of an application notice shall be served in accordance with this section, by the Zoning Board of Appeals, not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days before a scheduled public hearing in person or by certified mail on the owners of record within ten days after the application is filed when the applicant is the President or a member of the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Where the application is filed by a person having an interest in the subject property, a notice and copy of the application shall be served in like manner upon all other persons or entities having an interest in the property. Notice and service requirements shall be in addition to posting and publishing requirements of this article.~~

13.8.8. Hearing.

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall hold ~~at least one~~ a public hearing on each application for a special use ~~in the township in which the property is located.~~ An authorized representative of any county department that provided comment on the application shall testify at the hearing if requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals. The hearing shall take place at the Cook County Administration Building unless the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals determines that the County Building has more adequate facilities for such hearing. A record of proceedings, examinations, and other official actions shall be preserved in the manner prescribed by Zoning Board of Appeals' rules. If there is a judicial proceeding for a violation of any Cook County Ordinance involving the subject property, the applicant shall not be entitled to seek, nor shall the Zoning Board of Appeals grant, more than one-a continuance. The hearing shall be transcribed by a court reporter of the applicant's choosing. Failure of the applicant to provide a transcript of the hearing(s) within 30 days following the hearing shall void the application. The deadline to submit a transcript may be extended by the Zoning Board of Appeals once, for a maximum of 30 additional days.

13.8.9. Standards and findings of fact and recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

A. Special uses shall not be recommended by the Zoning Board of Appeals unless it makes written findings of fact consistent with the following standards:

1. Establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to or endanger public health, safety or general welfare.
2. Establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the uses already permitted, nor diminish and impair property values within the neighborhood.
3. Establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding property for permitted uses.
4. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities have been or are being provided.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

5. Adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide ingress and egress designed to minimize traffic congestion in public streets.
6. Establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use shall in all other respects conform to all Cook County ordinances, unless otherwise authorized by the Cook County Board of Commissioners pursuant to the recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

~~B. Applicants shall submit one original and 15 copies of proposed findings of fact documenting how the proposed special use meets the standards, to the Zoning Board of Appeals within 30 days of the public hearing. The applicant may seek, and the Zoning Board of Appeals may grant for good cause shown, one 30-day extension of time for the applicant to submit findings of fact. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall, within seven days of receiving the applicant's proposed findings of fact, forward the proposed findings of fact to the Cook County Commissioner in whose district the property is located, the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control to each municipality within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts. Any interested party, upon written request to the Zoning Board of Appeals, may review the applicant's proposed findings of fact. County departments, municipalities and other interested persons shall have 30 days from receiving the applicant's proposed findings of fact to file a written response with the Zoning Board of Appeals. The applicant or its representative may, within 14 days of the response period, review and/or furnish the Zoning Board of Appeals with any reply to the written response filed.~~

~~C. Recommendations and comments of the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control, and municipalities within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts shall be considered and addressed in writing by the Zoning Board of Appeals in its findings and recommendations. The Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals shall forward findings of fact and recommendations in accordance with this article.~~

~~D. Written findings of fact and recommendations to approve or deny the application shall be made by the Zoning Board of Appeals within 90 days after the close of a public hearing on a proposed special use and shall be submitted to the Cook County Board of Commissioners. Recommendations and comments of the Cook County Department of Planning and Development, the Cook County Department of Building and Zoning, the Cook County Department of Highways, the Cook County Forest Preserve District, the Cook County Health Department, the Cook County Department of Environmental Control, and municipalities within 1½ miles of the subject property and local school and fire protection districts shall be considered and addressed in writing by the Zoning Board of Appeals in its findings and recommendations. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall submit its findings and recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners. The 90-day period may be extended by the Zoning Board of Appeals for a maximum of 30 additional days if the Zoning Board of Appeals granted an extension pursuant to this article.~~

E. Recommendation for the adoption of a proposed special use shall not be made by the Zoning Board of Appeals unless it makes written findings of fact that the proposed use satisfies each of the standards and is in the best interest of the public. In all cases, the recommendations to the Cook County Board of Commissioners are advisory only.

13.8.10. Conditions and guarantees. The Zoning Board of Appeals may recommend, and the Cook County Board of Commissioners may impose, conditions and restrictions upon a special use to assure compliance with standards and requirements of this ordinance. The Cook County Board of Commissioners may require evidence and guarantees to ensure that the applicant complies with the conditions and restrictions of the special use. Failure of the applicant to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this ordinance.

13.8.11. Action by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

A. Final action shall not be taken on a proposed special use by the Cook County Board of Commissioners until the Zoning Board of Appeals' findings of fact and recommendations have been received.

B. Special uses shall be approved by a favorable vote of three-quarters of all members of the Cook County Board of Commissioners in cases where the Zoning Board of Appeals has not recommended adoption of a proposed special use or where there has been a written protest filed against a proposed special use in accordance with this article.

~~C. Applications for special uses shall be deemed denied if the Cook County Board of Commissioners has not taken final action within 60 days of receiving the Zoning Board of Appeals' findings and recommendations. The 60 day period may be extended if a request for an extension is made by the applicant or by a Cook County Board Commissioner and is granted by the Board of Commissioners.~~

~~D.~~ Decisions reached by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall take into account the findings and recommendations of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

~~E.~~ D. Special uses granted by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall be included in an Ordinance passed by the County Board.

13.8.12. Planned unit developments. A planned unit development shall conform to the requirements in Article 9.

13.8.13. Effect of denial. Applications for special uses which have been denied wholly or in part by the Cook County Board of Commissioners shall not be resubmitted for a period of one year from the date of the denial, except on the grounds of new evidence or proof of changed conditions found to be valid by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

13.8.14. Revocation. A special use which has been approved but not established on a zoning lot within one year or as otherwise provided by the special use permit shall be null and void. A special use is established on the date of issuance of a building permit. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall not have authority to extend the time limitation contained in a special use permit. If a special use is revoked by operation of this provision, and if the special use was granted in conjunction with a map amendment, the map amendment shall be revoked concurrently with revocation of the special use. Upon revocation, zoning of the subject property shall revert to the prior zoning classification unless otherwise authorized by the Cook County Board of Commissioners.

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #2 cont'd

ARTICLE 14. RULES AND DEFINITIONS

Map Amendment. An amendment to the zoning map which modifies a property's zoning designation.

Telecommunications carrier, wireless communication transmitting and receiving facility. A "telecommunications carrier, wireless communication transmitting and receiving facility" is a facility which consists of a combination of improvements and equipment, including but not limited to towers, antennas, wires, electrical cabinets, and foundations, that is operated pursuant to applicable federal licenses and includes antenna devices by which signals are transmitted and/or received.

Text Amendment. A change in the development standards in one or more zoning districts.

Effective Date: This Proposed Ordinance Amendment shall be in effect immediately upon passage and approval.

In accordance with Cook County Code Section 2-107(z)(1) Amendment or suspension of rules, Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved to suspend Section 2-107(h)(1) Prior notice to public; agendas. **The motion carried unanimously.**

Commissioner Silvestri, seconded by Commissioner Murphy, moved that the Proposed Ordinance Amendment be referred to the Committee on Zoning and Building. (Comm. No. 324315). **The motion carried unanimously.**

PROPOSED APPOINTMENT

ITEM #3

Transmitting a Communication, dated July 16, 2013 from

TONI PRECKWINKLE, President, Cook County Board of Commissioners

Re: Appointment – Cook County Zoning Board of Appeals

Please be advised that I hereby appoint Mr. Henry Oszakiewski to the Cook County Zoning Board of Appeals for a term to begin immediately and to expire on August 20, 2014.

I submit this communication for your approval.

In accordance with Cook County Code Section 2-107(z)(1) Amendment or suspension of rules, Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved to suspend Section 2-107(h)(1) Prior notice to public; agendas. **The motion carried unanimously.**

Commissioner Fritchey, seconded by Commissioner Silvestri, moved that the communication be referred to the Committee on Legislation and Intergovernmental Relations. (Comm. No. 324316). **The motion carried unanimously.**

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

ITEM #4

Transmitting a Communication, dated July 16, 2013 from

TONI PRECKWINKLE, President, Cook County Board of Commissioners

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

PARENTAL LEAVE POLICY

WHEREAS, Cook County currently does not provide for paid parental leave, necessitating employees to use their accrued sick and vacation leave or take unpaid leave while on maternity or paternity leave; and

WHEREAS, the Cook County Bureau of Human Resources has developed a policy that would provide paid parental leave for the birth of a newborn or adoption of a child; and

WHEREAS, the proposed policy would be available to all full-time non-union Cook County employees who are eligible for Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave; and

WHEREAS, an eligible employee who is a birth mother would receive up to four (4) or six (6) weeks of paid maternity leave depending on the type of birth; and

WHEREAS, up to two (2) weeks paid parental leave for the birth of a child or children would be available to an eligible employee who is a spouse, domestic partner or civil union partner of the birth mother; and

WHEREAS, up to two (2) weeks paid parental leave would be available to an eligible employee for the adoption of a child or children or the adoption of a child or children by an eligible employee's spouse, domestic partner or civil union partner; and

WHEREAS, Cook County should adopt this parental leave policy to offer all eligible non-union employees paid parental leave, which will not only benefit our working parents and their children but also the County's overall mission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the President and Board of Commissioners of Cook County does hereby direct the Chief of the Bureau of Human Resources to implement a Parental Leave Policy with an effective date of August 1, 2013; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all Cook County agencies and offices receive a copy of the Parental Leave Policy issued by the Chief of the Bureau of Human Resources on or before August 1, 2013; and

PRESIDENT continued

PROPOSED RESOLUTION continued

ITEM #4 cont'd

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all Cook County agencies and offices work with the Chief of the Bureau of Human Resources in order to implement the Parental Leave Policy among all Cook County agencies and offices.

In accordance with Cook County Code Section 2-107(z)(1) Amendment or suspension of rules, Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved to suspend Section 2-107(h)(1) Prior notice to public; agendas. **The motion carried unanimously.**

Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved that the Proposed Resolution be referred to the Committee on Finance. (Comm. No. 324317). **The motion carried unanimously.**

COMMISSIONERS

PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS

ITEM #5

Submitting a Proposed Resolution Sponsored by

PETER N. SILVESTRI, County Commissioner

Co-Sponsored by

JOHN P. DALEY, JOHN A. FRITCHEY, BRIDGET GAINER, JESUS G. GARCIA, GREGG GOSLIN, JOAN PATRICA MURPHY, EDWIN REYES, TIMOTHY O. SCHNEIDER, DEBORAH SIMS, ROBERT B. STEELE, LARRY SUFFREDIN and JEFFREY R. TOBOLSKI, County Commissioners

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

**RESOLUTION REQUIRING COOK COUNTY METRA RAIL BOARD MEMBERS
APPOINTED BY PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE AND THE SUBURBAN COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS TO REPORT REGARDING THE SEVERANCE AGREEMENT
RECENTLY AWARDED TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE**

WHEREAS, Metra was created to provide train service throughout the Chicagoland region, including Cook County; and

WHEREAS, four (4) Metra board members are appointed by suburban majority Cook County Commissioners on a proportional basis; and

WHEREAS, the extent of the authority of the President and Commissioners in Metra matters is limited to such appointments and an annual report from Metra to the full Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the Metra Board of Directors recently approved an extensive severance package for its current Chief Executive Officer; and

WHEREAS, the Metra rail system is funded through taxpayer dollars and fares generated by the system.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the appointees of the President and Suburban Commissioners appear before the Suburban Caucus Committee, as defined by state statute and report on the facts and circumstances surrounding this potential severance package for its Chief Executive Director; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that such meeting be held prior to August 1, 2013.

This item was WITHDRAWN at the request of the sponsor.

* * * * *

COMMISSIONERS continued

PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS continued

ITEM #6

Submitting a Proposed Resolution sponsored by

ELIZABETH “LIZ” DOODY GORMAN, County Commissioner

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION URGING LEGISLATION THAT WOULD REQUIRE CELL PHONE PROVIDERS TO KEEP IDENTIFICATION OF ALL CELL PHONE USERS ON FILE

WHEREAS, human trafficking is defined by the United States Department of State as “activities involved when one person obtains or holds another person in compelled service; and

WHEREAS, an estimated 2.5 million people, 80 percent of whom are women and girls, worldwide are victims of this modern day form of slavery; and

WHEREAS, in the city of Chicago and suburban Cook County someone is reported missing every 30 minutes, many of those are girls as young as twelve years old who are held against their will and fall victim to Human Trafficking; and

WHEREAS, recent statistics have named Human Trafficking the second largest most profitable criminal enterprise among members of organized crime and violent street gangs; and

WHEREAS, modern technology allows traffickers to operate virtually undetected by the use of social media where many victims are forced to pose for humiliating and degrading pictures that are then posted on the internet and available to be viewed by individuals seeking to engage in sexual acts in exchange for money further contributing to the sexual exploitation; and

WHEREAS, one of the most valuable resources available to traffickers to continue to remain undetected while maintaining constant communication with victims of Human Trafficking, their associates, and potential customers is the use of cellular phones; and

WHEREAS, no contract prepaid cell phones are referred to on the street as burners or drop phones and are impossible to track because phone carriers do not require a contact, photo identification or a minimum age; and

WHEREAS, in instances where law enforcement’s only lead in rescuing a kidnapped victim is being able to determine who a cell phone number is registered too, can be the difference between life and death.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the President and Cook County Board of Commissioners urges the United States Congress and the Illinois General Assembly to pass legislation that would require all cell phone carriers to secure and keep on file photo identification which includes a physical address from any person wishing to obtain a cellular phone whether or not a contract is involved; and

COMMISSIONERS continued

PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS continued

ITEM #6 cont'd

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be presented to the President of the United States, the legislative leaders of Congress from both political parties, the Governor of the State of Illinois, the legislative leaders of the General Assembly from both political parties and all Members of Congress who represent Cook County and all Members of the Illinois General Assembly who represent Cook County.

In accordance with Cook County Code Section 2-107(z)(1) Amendment or suspension of rules, Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved to suspend Section 2-107(h)(1) Prior notice to public; agendas. **The motion carried unanimously.**

Commissioner Gorman, seconded by Commissioner Murphy, moved that the Proposed Resolution be referred to the Committee on Legislation and Intergovernmental Relations. (Comm. No. 324318). **The motion carried unanimously.**

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

ITEM #7

Submitting a Proposed Ordinance Amendment sponsored by

LARRY SUFFREDIN, County Commissioner

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

**AN AMENDMENT TO THE COOK COUNTY CLERK'S
ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME FEE**

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Cook County Board of Commissioners that Chapter 2 Administration, Article IV Officers and Employees, Division 2 County Clerk Fees, Subdivision II Fees, Section 2-172 of the Cook County Code is hereby amended as follows:

Sec. 2-172. Clerk fees generally.

(a) The fees of the County Clerk with respect to the herein described services shall be as set forth in Section 32-1

- (1) The fee for certifying from the official records of the County the general taxes levied and paid for each year, for each lot or tract shall be as set forth in Section 32-1
- (2) The fee for issuing a certificate of deposit for redemption from sold or forfeited taxes shall be as set forth in for the original and for each duplicate certificate;

COMMISSIONERS continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #7 cont'd

- (3) The fee for making a search and Section 32-1 report of general taxes and special assessments for use in the preparation of estimate of cost of redemption from sales or forfeitures or for withdrawn or otherwise delinquent taxes or for use in the preparation of estimate of cost of purchase of forfeited property, or for use in preparation of order on the County Collector for searches requested by buyers at annual tax sale, for each lot or tract, for the first year searched, and for each additional year or fraction thereof shall be as set forth in Section 32-1
 - (4) The fee for each tract or lot for preparing from tax search report an estimate of cost of redemption concerning property sold, forfeited or withdrawn for nonpayment of general taxes and special assessments shall be as set forth in Section 32-1
 - (5) The fee for issuance of a tax deed as directed by order of the Circuit Court of Cook County shall be as set forth in Section 32-1
 - (6) The County Clerk shall charge and collect a fee as set forth in Section 32-1 for the filing of a certificate of an assumed business name. The County Clerk shall also charge and collect a fee as set forth in Section 32-1 for any subsequent amendments by an assumed business name registrant to a previously filed certificate.
- (b) The following fees shall be deposited by the County Clerk with the Comptroller of Cook County to the general fund:
- (1) The fee for issuing an original certificate of deposit for redemption from sold or forfeited taxes and the fee for each duplicate certificate shall be as set forth in Section 32-1
 - (2) The fee for the first year searched on each lot or tract and the fee for each additional year or fraction thereof searched when making a search and report of general taxes and special assessments for use in the preparation of estimate of cost of redemption from sales or for use in the preparation of estimate of cost of purchase of forfeited property, or for use in preparation of 20-year delinquent tax certifications to be filed in tax deed petition cases, or for use in preparation of order on the County Collector for searches requested by buyers at annual tax sale shall be as set forth in Section 32-1
 - (3) The fee for preparing from tax search report an estimate of cost of redemption concerning property sold, forfeited or withdrawn for nonpayment of general taxes and special assessments;
 - (4) The fee for issuing a tax deed pursuant to order of the Circuit Court of Cook County shall be as set forth in Section 32-1

COMMISSIONERS continued

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT continued

ITEM #7 cont'd

- (c) The fees listed hereafter shall be deposited by the County Clerk in the following manner:
 - (1) The fee for certifying the general taxes levied and paid for each lot or tract, for each year:
 - a. One dollar shall be deposited with the Comptroller to the general fund;
 - b. Four dollars shall be deposited with the Comptroller to the County Clerk's automation fund.
 - (2) The fee for making a search and report of general taxes and special assessments for use in the preparation of estimate of cost of redemption for forfeited property or for withdrawn or otherwise delinquent general taxes or special assessments, except in connection with a sale of the taxes:
 - a. For the first year searched for each lot or tract, \$4.00 shall be deposited with the County Comptroller to the general fund and \$6.00 shall be deposited with the County Comptroller to the County Clerk's automation fund; and
 - c. For each additional year searched, \$2.00 for each year shall be deposited with the County Comptroller to the general fund and \$1.00 shall be deposited with the County Comptroller to the County Clerk's automation fund.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, by the Cook County Board of Commissioners that Part 1 General Ordinances, Chapter 32 Fees, Section 32-1, of the Cook County Code is hereby amended as follows:

Sec. 32-1. Fee schedule.

The fees or charges provided for or required by the below-listed sections shall be as shown below:

2-172 (a)(6)	Assumed business name filing fee	50.00
2-172 (a)(7)	<u>Amendments to assumed business name filing fee</u>	<u>25.00</u>

In accordance with Cook County Code Section 2-107(z)(1) Amendment or suspension of rules, Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved to suspend Section 2-107(h)(1) Prior notice to public; agendas. **The motion carried unanimously.**

Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved that the Proposed Ordinance Amendment be referred to the Committee on Finance. (Comm. No. 324319). **The motion carried unanimously.**

BUREAU OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

ITEM #8

Transmitting a Communication, dated July 11, 2013 from

HERMAN BREWER, Chief, Bureau of Economic Development

respectfully submitting this Resolution regarding Brigham Construction Company and U-Store-It Midlothian, LLC's request for a Class 8 property tax incentive for special circumstances and substantial rehabilitation for an commercial building located at 3647 West 147th Street and 14723 South Lawndale Avenue, Midlothian, Illinois. The applicant intends to lease the site to its company U-Store-It Midlothian, LLC a self-storage facility.

Brigham Construction Company and U-Store-It Midlothian, LLC requests approval of the tax incentive based on the special circumstances that the property has been vacant for more than 24 months; has been purchased for value; and substantial rehabilitation will be completed under the Class 8 Ordinance. This Resolution is required so that the company can complete its application to the Assessor of Cook County.

Submitting a Proposed Resolution sponsored by

TONI PRECKWINKLE, President and JOAN PATRICIA MURPHY, County Commissioner

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Cook County Board of Commissioners has adopted a Real Property Assessment Classification 8 that provides an applicant a reduction in the assessment level for an industrial facility; and

WHEREAS, the County Board of Commissioners has received and reviewed an application from Brigham Construction Company/ U-Store-It Midlothian, LLC and Resolution No. 13-0522-A from the Village of Midlothian for an abandoned industrial facility located at 3647 West 147th Street and 14723 South Lawndale Avenue Midlothian, Illinois, Cook County, Illinois, County Board District 6 and Property Index Numbers: 28-11-305-016-0000, 28-11-305-017-0000 and 28-11-305-003-000 .

WHEREAS, Cook County has defined abandoned property as buildings and other structures that, after having been vacant and unused for at least 24 months, are purchased for value by a purchaser in whom the seller has no direct financial interest; and

WHEREAS, industrial real estate is normally assessed at 25% of its market value, qualifying industrial real estate eligible for the Class 6b can receive a significant reduction in the level of assessment from the date that new construction or rehabilitation has been completed, or in the case of abandoned property from the date of substantial re-occupancy. Properties receiving Class 6b will be assessed at 10% of the market value for 10 years, 15% for the 11th year and 20% in the 12th year.

BUREAU OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT continued

PROPOSED RESOLUTION continued

ITEM #8 cont'd

WHEREAS, in the instance where the property does not meet the definition of abandoned property, the municipality or the Board of Commissioners, may determine that special circumstances justify finding that the property is abandoned for purpose of Class 8; and

WHEREAS, in the case of abandonment of more than 24 months and no purchase for value, by a purchaser in whom the seller has no direct financial interest, the County may determine that special circumstances justify finding the property is deemed abandoned; and

WHEREAS, Class 8 requires the validation by the County Board of the period of qualifying abandonment in cases where the facility has been abandoned for more than 24 consecutive months with no purchase for value; and

WHEREAS, the Cook County Board of Commissioners has determined that the building was abandoned for 26 months at the time of application, and that special circumstances are present; and

WHEREAS, the applicant estimates that the re-occupancy will create two (2) new full-time jobs and three (3) part-time jobs; and create 15 or more construction jobs; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Midlothian states the Class 8 is necessary for development to occur and that special circumstances exist which include the subject property has been vacant for more than 24 months there has been no purchase for value; and that the subject property is in need of substantial rehabilitation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the President and Board of Commissioners of the County of Cook, State of Illinois, that the President and Board of Commissioners validate the property located at 3647 West 147th Street and 14723 South Lawndale Avenue, Midlothian, Illinois, Cook County, Illinois, is deemed abandoned with special circumstances under the Class 8; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to forward a certified copy of this Resolution to the Office of the Cook County Assessor.

In accordance with Cook County Code Section 2-107(z)(1) Amendment or suspension of rules, Commissioner Daley, seconded by Commissioner Sims, moved to suspend Section 2-107(h)(1) Prior notice to public; agendas. **The motion carried unanimously.**

Commissioner Garcia, seconded by Commissioner Murphy, moved that the Proposed Resolution be referred to the Finance Subcommittee on Real Estate Business and Economic Development. (Comm. No. 324320). **The motion carried unanimously.**